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THE VILLAGE OF HAWTHORN WOODS
PLANNING, BUILDING AND ZONING COMMISSION
2 LAGOON DRIVE, HAWTHORN WOODS, ILLINOIS

TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 2022
6:30 P.M.

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mr. Merkel called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. Roll call indicated the following
members were present: Mr. Merkel, Mr. Lindquist, Mr. Tisci, Mr. Voltattorni, and Ms,
Massel. Absent: Mr. Donovan.

Also present were Chief Administrative Officer/Village Clerk Donna Lobaito, Community
Development Director Chris Heinen, and Village Attorney Patrick Brankin.

OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION
None this month.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of Minutes of the March 8, 2022 Planning, Building and Zoning Commission
Meeting

Motion by Tisci, second by Massel to approve the minutes of the March 8, 2022
Planning, Building and Zoning Commission meeting.

Voice vote:
Ayes: 5
Nays: 0
Abstain: 0
Absent: 1
Motion carried.
NEW BUSINESS

Public Hearing — M/I Homes — Consideration for an amendment to the special use
planned development for the Hawthorn Woods Country Club for: 1) the approval of
proposed architecture and landscaping, ii) revision of the anti-monotony standards, iii)
revision of certain development standards set forth in Exhibit D of the Annexation
Agreement, but not limited to the following: a) increasing the minimum floor area
requirements, and b) clarifying the application of Architectural Overlay District
Provisions, and iv) as well as such other relief or approvals as the Commission may
determine reasonably necessary in connection with the foregoing
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Motion by Lindquist, second by Massel to open the public hearing.

Roll call vote:
Ayes: Merkel, Lindquist, Tisci, Voltattori, Massel
Nays: None

Abstain:  None
Absent:  Donovan
Motion carried, and the public hearing opened at 6:39 p.m.

Community Development Director Chris Heinen provided an overview of the application
to the Commission. The applicant is seeking an amended special use planned
development to construct homes on 105 lots in the Hawthorn Woods Country Club. Mr.
Heinen reviewed the proposed models and related square footage of each model. There
will be landscaping packages for each model with required planting in the front yards of
each developed lot, and the rear yards of each developed lot where a rear yard
immediately abuts the golf course or an existing home in the subdivision.

Mr. Heinen testified the proposed monotony standard is similar to recently approved
developments within the Village. Minimum floor area requirements were reviewed with
the applicant proposing to increase the overall minimum square footage for the golf
villas, executive homes and estate homes from what is currently found in the existing
annexation agreement

Mr. Heinen testified the applicant is proposing to eliminate the single-family dwelling
aspects of the Architectural Overlay District outlined in the original annexation
agreement as the provisions of the Architectural Overlay District are no longer applicable
to single-family homes.

Greg Collins, M/I Homes, provided an overview of the company to the Commissioners.
He testified M/I is looking to acquire all 105 remaining vacant lots in the Hawthorn
Woods Country Club, but they are not the developer. He reviewed the various floor
plans, building elevations and the 3-car garage configuration.

The following portion of the meeting was prepared by Litera Reporting, Inc., and the
transcripts are attached as Exhibit “A”

Motion by Lindquist, second by Tisci to close the public hearing.

Roll call vote:
Ayes: Merkel, Lindquist, Tisci, Voltattorni, Massel
Nays: None

Abstain:  None
Absent:  Donovan
Motion carried, and the public hearing closed at 8:32 p.m.
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Deliberations ensued by the Commission members.

The following portion of the meeting was prepared by Litera Reporting, Inc., and the
transcripts are attached as Exhibit “A”

Motion by Voltattorni, second by Tisci to recommend an amendment to the special use
planned development for the Hawthorn Woods Country Club for: i) the approval of
proposed architecture and landscaping, ii) revision of the anti-monotony standards, iii)
revision of certain development standards set forth in Exhibit D of the Annexation
Agreement, but not limited to the following: a) increasing the minimum floor area
requirements, and b) clarifying the application of Architectural Overlay District
Provisions, and iv) as well as such other relief or approvals as the Commission may
determine reasonably necessary in connection with the foregoing, subject to the following
conditions: A larger ranch product, a two story first-floor master bedroom elevation
product, and evaluation of the product on each of the lots in consideration.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion by Voltattorni, second by Tisci to adjourn the meeting.

Voice vote:
Ayes: 5
Nays: 0
Abstain: 0
Absent: 1
Motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Donna Lobaito
Chief Administrative Officer/Village Clerk
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L w1 agenda, the opportunity for the public to address the
nwara 2 commission. Don't run up here for anything that is
: m:mm‘;:ﬁ%; %;%i%;ﬁ%iii?m wszss 3 not on the agenda today. If you are here for the
s TURSORY, MRRCR 32, 2022 wsaras 4 Hawthorn Woods Country Club development, that's not
4 AGENDA warze 8§ what we're talking about now.
5 I. call to Order and Roll Call 1gara0 B If there is anything else anybody
¢ e iPelonality for [he[BUELES £0 ASHESSR GHE nwares 1 wants to taik about? All right. Seeing none, next
: 111, A:;-u:;;;imc’:l!{::u;::utes ot the s 5, 2028 wsrss 8  item on the agenda is approval of our minutes from
. ;i::‘;';;?' Building and foning Commissicn warss 9 Tuesday, March 8th at 6:30 p.m.. We did that meeting
10 IV. New Business waree 10 virtually.
A. Public Hearing M/I Homes - Consideration
" Goelumant Ter the Buviaers Sests Counrey Ciub fors srss 11 I'm looking for a mation to approve
N e R R e e w12  those minutes as written 22 I motion.
R e e e waso 13 MR. TISCI: Aye.
14 Agreement, but mot limited to the following: A)
I vt R T e i waw 14 MR, MERKEL: Second?
16 otner gelief o spprovals ab the Comntsion mey weew 16 MS. MASSEL: I will second.
17 Tarapatng. LY RRCMELEY fn cunniceian wie the 1e38:18 16 We can do that as a voice vote. All in
16 ¥ BSJSEEnent w3 17 favor of the minutes as written, please say I,
:: 1aasa0 18 {Collective aye.)
. 1ee0 19 MR. MERKEL: All opposed? None.
1maze 20 Excellent. The next thing on our
a7 21 agenda is new business. Again, bear with me, I will
2 waast 22 read the new business.
LITERA REPORTING, ING. 113883 23 This is a public hearing for M/I
ness 24  Homes consideration for amendment to the special use
LITERA REPORTING, INC.
2 4
1 {Whereupon the following proceedings wawse 1 plan development for Hawthorn Woods Country Club for;
tn3mzs 2 were had in an open forum.) wamnz 2 1, the approval of proposed architecture and
w24 3 MR. MERKEL: Good evening, everyone. Good wawoy 3 landscaping, 2, revision of an anti-monotony
wasas 4 evening, everyone, Welcome to the Planning, Building waess 4 standards, 3, revision of certain development
wase 5 and Zoning Committee Meeting for the Village of wasts 9 standards set forth in Exhibit D on the annexation
sz 6 Hawthorn Woods for Tuesday March 22nd at 6:30. mms @ agreement, but not limited to the following: A
183858 7 It is currently 6:33 p.m. and we will start o 7 increasing the minimum floor area requirements, B,
1saess 8 oUr meeting. wa2s B clarifying the application of the architectural
war 9 Ms. Lobaito, if you wouldn't mind, wmz 9 overlay district provisions, and 4, as well as such
warez 10 we'll start with rollcall to bring the meeting to w10 other relief or approvals as the committee may
11 order. waes 11 determine reasonably necessary in conjunction with
12 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Voltatori. 13w 12 the foregoing.
13 MR. VOLTATORI: Here. s 13 In English, we are going to review the
14 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Lindquist. 1assz 14 proposal in front of us today, and T will walk
15 MR. LINDQUIST: Present. uze4s 18 through how we will do that.
16 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Merkel. 1azsde 16 First thing, let's talk about some
17 MR. MERKEL: Present. st 17 housekeeping items. Item 1, to the planning
18 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Tisci. raasess 18 commission -- it's been several years since we have
19 MS. TISCI: Here. wwse 19  been together, so please talk into your microphones
20 MS. LOBAITO: Ms. Massel. sman00 20 when you're speaking.
21 MS. MASSEL: Here. 1a4000 21 This is a public hearing. The way this is
parie 22 MS. LOBAITO: We have a quorum. wacos 22 going to happen is, we are going to first open the
23 MR. MERKEL: Excellent. wacos 23 public hearing. We'll ask for staff report to give
189724 24 The first thing is the second item on the 1wan1s 24 us an overview of the application and what is
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5 7
wavss 1 happening. And we'll then have a presentation by the 1 MR. VOLTATORI: Aye.
wa1s 2 applicants. Followed by questions by the planning 2 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Lindquist?
4022 3 committee. 3 MR. LINDQUIST: Aye.
14022 & We wilt ask questions to the applicant. 4 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Merkel?
w4n2s 3 At that time the public can address the commission 5 MR. MERKEL: Aye.
wa2e 6  with any comments., A couple things, we will listen 6 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Tisci?
sz 7 to every single person that has something to say. We 7 MS. TISCI: Aye.
wase §  will be open to talk with whoever has a comment, 8 MS. LOBAITO: Ms. Massel?
wem 9 question, consideration. We are happy to stay and 1azss 9 MS. MASSEL: Aye.
waaz 10 talk about it. 1aezss 10 MR. MERKEL: So we are open in the public
124043 11 The one thing we can say though is, if 4257 11 hearing.
1aes 12 Bill gets up and says something and you had the exact eazse 12 We'll start with your staff report. If
1eav4e 13 same thing, we would like you to say, I agree with wa3o0 13 you can give us an overview of what we are going to
w4052 14 that, you don't need to repeat, keep it short, wazos 14 be talking about today?
104055 15 When you do come up, state your name and 1eaa10 18 MR. HEINEN: Thank yvou. Good evening. The
waose 16 address. And then you will be swearing an oath and w4z 16 staff report was sent out to everybody, so I can
waz 17 we'll do that here, if that is okay. uwass 17 briefly go through what the applicant is looking to
14108 18 The other thing that is important tonight, w4z 18 do.
14100 19 this is the planning commission. We are not the 1a43:00 19 A little bit of background information,
w411 20 approving area of the board. Basically, we give w4x21 20 The original developer, Tell Brothers, came forth
w4tn 21 recommendations to the board. We will have our w4x2s 21  back in 2003 with the original concept for the
war1s 22 comments, hear all of you, consolidate those into a wax2s 22 Hawthorn Woods Country Club. As part of that, there
warie 23 recommendation to the board, and then the board makes | ss4:31 23 were numerous amendments that went along with that
waz 24 the final decision. The board meeting will be at -- w4xss 24  annexation agreement and planned development.
LITERA REPORTING, INC. LITERA REPORTING, INC.
6 8
1 is? P | Subsequently, we are here tonight to
w1 2 MR. HINAN: We do not know that yet. e 2 discuss an amendment to that annexation agreement, as
a3 3 MR. MERKEL: We do not know that yet. w441 3 well as the special use planned development. The
waa & So again, this is a recommending w404« 4 main focus tonight is the planned development aspect
wan 5 committee. We'll come up with suggestions, waxar &  of that application.
wae 6 proposals, recommendations to the board that they 1eaa49 B The applicants came to the Village looking
a3 7 will consider, but they will make the final say. w452 7 to acquire the remaining 105 lots that are currently
1w B We have a court reporter here that is wazsy 8 developed within the subdivision. There are two more
w4 9 taking down everything you say. We have that, so you w400 9 phases, phases five and six, which is the applicant
was 10 know. was0s 10 is not here to discuss tonight. Those are going to
1m0 11 With that, is it okay if we -- w4e07 11 be part of a separate application further down the
wass 12 everyone who is interested in saying something, what 1wae11 12 road,
was 13 I would like you to do is stand at this point. 1a4411 13 As you mentioned, there are several areas
wazer 14 Anyone? wazz 14 that the applicant is looking to change as part of
1eazas 18 (Witnesses sworn.} wa4e15 18 the special use planned development. The first is
1eazar 16 MR. MERKEL: If somebody wants to do the cath w4e17 16 the proposed architecture. When the original
w2z 17 again, we can do that. Thank you. waet 17  development came in, Toll Brothers had set forth a
1mazze 18 I'm looking for a motion to open the public wae2s 18 set of building elevations that were approved. M/I
wazs0 19 hearing. w420 19 is looking to come in and add to those, that booklet
20 MR. LINDQUIST: Aye. w44 20 of elevations.
tauzan 21 MS. MASSEL: TI'll second. 1manse 21 They are proposing about 13 different
1nazas 22 MR. MERKEL: Ms. Lobaito, if you wouldn't mind war 22  models, each model representing about four different
waza1 23 taking a roll call to open the public hearing? waeo 23 building elevations, and have quite a mix of square
24 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Voltatori? e 24 footages. The majority of the elevations are going
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9 11
waas 1 to be two-story with the introduction of one ranch. warae 1 provisions that were in the original annexation
a5 2 All of the homes are going to be three-car warat 2 agreement, they are looking to eliminate those. When
waes 3 garage, some are side-load, some are front-load, some 1arar 3 this development was approved back in 2003, the
w0 4 will be a combination of side and front-load. wares 4 village didn't have architectural overlay guidelines.
wesor B Something new that Toll did not do that u4r4e 8§ In 2018 the village did incorporate that into the
w4s:1 6 the applicant is loocking to provide is provide a u4rss 6  zoning ordinance, so the applicant is requesting to
w456 ¢ landscaping package with each individual elevation. wazes ¢ basically abide by the current zoning ordinance
w46 B This is something new, and at the request of the w4zsa 8 regulations for architectural overlay.

9 village, so those are in your packet as well, It's 1oarse 9 That basically means any single-family
wesn 10 kind of a wide spectrum of potentially native w42 10 attached or detached dwelling in R1 or R2 District
w4s2¢ 11 plannings that could go into that package. What you wesos 11 doesn't have to go through these standards, The
was24 12 have before you is a little bit of what could go on 14m0 12 Hawthorn Woods Country Club is in an R1 zoning
wes20 13 in terms of the landscaping. Obviously, we can wasnz 13 district.
w4 14 review those at the time of building to make sure 1e4ez 14 Additionally, any non-residential use
sz 15 there is no invasive species and goes along with the s 18 still has to abide by these restrictions. That is in
14se3 16 other landscape requirements in the zoning ordinance. 1420 16 the zoning ordinance as well as the annexation
1e4s.a7 17 Secondary, the anti-monotony standards. i4s24 17  agreement. They are not changing any of those
wasst 18  They are looking to eliminate the existing waezs 18  requirements.
weasss 19 anti-monotony and replace it with the ones in the 1n4ae2e 19 Those are the basics of what the
wae0 20  packet. This anti-monotony plan is very similar to w4se2 20 applicants are proposing. I know they have a
w4s00 21  other developments that have been approved in other wmanss 21  presentation to go through. Unless you have any
14601 22 residential developments in the village. wanss 22 other questions?

1846:04 23 Minimum floor area requirements, the 1m4m38 29 MR, MERKEL: One question or comment. Could you
w4s0r 24 minimum square footage for these homes, They are ez 24 introduce yourself and your position here at the
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w41 1 actually looking to increase the minimum size. In 1 Village?
waa 2 the original annexation agreement, the 1-story tassn 2 MR. HEINEN: I'm Chris Heinen. I am the
w4ss 3 ranches for the golf villa is 1500 square feet, They wssas 3 cOommunity development director.
wazn 4 are Jooking to increase that to 2,225 square feet. 1auss1 4 MR. MERKEL: Any questions for Chris?
waezr 8 The executive home lots, the minimum for a ranch is 104858 D Cne point of clarification: The
waese B 1,700 square feet, and they are looking to increase usssa 6  architectural overlay district provision, you said
wassa 7 that to 2,225 square feet, uwseoa 7 that is basically just bringing it to what we have
tedem 8 The estate homes, which are a majority of uwasos 8 today, conformance to what we are doing today?
eaee 9 the homes on the north side with the larger lots, the ez 9 MR. HEINEN: Yes.
waau 10 applicants indicated they are not going to be 1eszz 10 MR. MERKEL: The other thing, do you want to give
w4647 11 building a ranch home on the north side. aasis 11 @ comment to the letter we received from the
ieanse 12 In terms of the two-story, the original uwsezz 12 homeowners association?
wass 13 annexation agreement for existing two-story 1auszs 13 MR. HEINEN: You can enter that into the record.
ear00 14 structures for the golf villas was 2,000 square feet, 184320 14 MR. MERKEL: I think it is helpful for everyone
1earoz 18  They are looking to increase that to 2,892 square mw4s31 18 here to hear what the board has said. Is that okay?
waros 16 feet. And then the executive homes, they are locking a4z 16 MR. HEINEN: Sure.
1ear0s 17 also to increase that from 2,200 square feet to 2,892 1a4s 17 MR, MERKEL; I will read that.
a6 18 square feet. 1a4s:30 18 Chris Heinen, community development
1e4a7.18 19 And then, the estate homes on the northern 19 director, Village of Hawthorn Woods.
14719 20 side, right now the minimum square footage for a masan 20 subject: M/I Homes. Application for amendment to
waru 21  2-story is 2,200 square feet, and they are looking to 1a4s4s 21  annexation agreement for Hawthorn Woods Country Club,
wars 22  increase that to 3,400 square feet on the estate 1w4s4s 22 the applicant.
a7 23 homes. 18:4048 23 Mr. HEINEN, as president of the Hawthorn
nara0 24 Lastly, the architectural overlay district 1a4e52 24  Woods Country Club Homeowners Association LLC, I
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| e4ess 1 understand the Village of Hawthorn Woods has wiz 1  understand the process, but we have a multi-part
waess 2 requested the association’s consent to the w4 2 process to the actual buying process, from sitting
wapss 3 aforementioned application. I hereby provide that wiete 3 down with designers, sitting down with our NHC, out
wseez 4 consent on behalf of the board of directors of the wiezs 4  new home consultants, and any specialty construction
wseos D association. We take no position on the substance of w26 8§ managers and various touch points all along the way,
wsoo7r &  the application leaving those matters -- leaving waes B With that carried momentum, we see us
wsens 7 those details to subject matter experts at M/I Homes wize 7 diving into this community -—— I'm sure many in the
wsets 8 and the village. However, as it relates to the w41 8 room are either experts, they are in the business,
wseia 9 general matter of facilitating the build-out of the w4 @ can attest to the fact that there is almost zero -- I
w2z 10 remaining lots of Hawthorn Woods Country Club, the 1052 10 think you have one active listing in this community.
esezs 11 association lends its support. Neary two decades in 1e:087 11 Q Just to be clear for everybody, are you
wsom 12 the planning, the ultimate build-out of our community | w0 12 not -- are you committed to buying it?
wseaz 13 will ease the financial burden on existing members of saaros 13 A Am I committed? Yeah, I mean, if I waive my
ws0s 14 the association and support the general welfare of 1100 14 feasibility and waive all my contingencies because
wsoss 15 residents in the Hawthorn Woods Country Club. Thank | w1112 15 the village said yes, I got approval, I'm closing,
weso41 16 you for your time and attention in this matter. We e 16 yes.
wesous 17 sincerely appreciate your service to your community, 1ot1e 17 Q Next question is, there will be no changing
wso4s 18 president Larry Hill. We'll put that in the record. w2 18  of lot sizes or combining or splitting?
1es03 19 At this time we ask the applicant to come iz 19 A No. Asis as platted today we are not
wsose 20 forward. If you can introduce yourself? o 20 modifying.
1es100 21 MR. COLLINS: Good evening, My name is Greg 1z 21 Q And then final question. I think the
ws:ie 22 Collins, I am with M/I Homes. 400 East Diehl, ey 22 homeowners in the current neighborhood want to
wszs 23 Naperville, Illingis, 60563, Thank you for having us wiee 23 understand, A, kind of your experience going into an
wstzr 24 tonight. Many of the folks, thank you. There was a 1wta 24  already-developed community and taking over and how
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wstsa 1 great turnout at the meeting with the HOA in w7 1 that relates to the current homeowners, damage to
waan 2 December. Much of what I will go over with the wnsz 2 streets, noise, all that.
wsar 3 presentation they have probably seen, but for your wse 3 A Right. As we had gone on record with
ws:a 4 benefit I will be able to go through those details, witer 4 homeowners, the first priority is to do a walk with
wsta2 D plus the additional information that architecture and wizm 5§ the village and introduce the homeowners into that.
nsies 6 floor plans added since that meeting. waza 6 This is unique situation that they are there. I know
wmszan T (Presentation not on the record.) wizor 7 there are some development issues to be handled to
oo 8 MR. MERKEL: Any questions? wizn 8§ make sure things are finished up, but what we

9 EXAMINATION wizis 9 typically do in this situation is what is the as-is
w20 10 BY MR. TISCI: w1218 10  condition today? What do we know, one, needs to be
1ogez0 11 Q Just some basic questions. I just want to wizzs 11  fixed, or two, gets exacerbated with construction.
woezs 12 clarify, you mentioned you're not going to be buying w2z 12  Yes, these areas are going to become small mini
waeze 13 all 105 lots, and just for laymen's terms, you will 11z1 13 construction sites.
wosz 14 buy as-needed? w2 14 We haven't looked at it yet, but we
100e3s 18 A That is our commitment on a quarterly basis. wizes 15 told ourselves the most logical place is to start
wosay 16 That can be accelerated. We are very bullish. We wize0 16 over here, only because it allows us from cadence,
wosar 17 hope that the market Is there. w245 17 trays, it's easier to work ourselves down the street,
1o0m45 18 One of the things that you will see st 18  so that focus and attention is going to be on this
wosds 19 with us is our market presence with out model, 1wrzse 19 90 percent. Our model will be out here (indicating).
wmosso 20 getting out In front of -- you know, creating 1o1300 20 MR. MERKEL: Where is the model?
woasd 21 first-look lists, drumming up as much energy and buzz | 1130 21 A Right here. Closest we can get to an
wices 22 50 we can build out — because we all know that wian 22 entrance. Again, not bringlng sales traffic buried
wid 23 someone wants to gets tires on the hold and get wsas 23 Into a site they can't find us. Put them where
w0 24 going, they understand quality construction, they ez 24  identification Is out here and can come off the road.
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17 19
1etaze MR. MERKEL: Outside the community? wmte 1 Q Is that the base one or the 4,000 square?
11329 2 A Right here, sy 2 A That is the average.

e 3 MR TASCI: I think there may be one issue there 19166 3 Q The average?
11334 4 that needs to be resolved with the HOA, that those ey 4 A Yeah. That gives you an average of where we
w1 5 gates now are permanently closed and only accessible |1mwe 5 are going to be -
wizar 6 by residents. The gates. 1oe2 B Q 5S5toe?
1134 T A There is a going -- there is an underiying wtezs T A Yeah. High 5 to jow 6. You will find some
e 8  declarant right that we will assume on certain w1627 B buyers that are going to be in a lot of different
w1 9 obligations from Toll. Those didn't go away. They 1wis20 9 positions with that.
senss 10 have to have the ability to market the site and do ez 10 Q Again, I'm not a real estate expert. The
1eese 11 certain things, to come in and do construction. wwss 11 drawing you gave us on the elevation -- I don't
1o 12 MR TASCI: It's safe to say those gates will e 12 remember which -- the Hudson, which is your newest
1e0s 13 probably be open five days a week, maybe weekends? | w14 13  largest elevation, if I remember correctly?
1oe1 14 MR. MERKEL: That is @ good point. The market is | 19154 14 A No, the --
w13 15 going to be open. 1ese 18 Q Which one did you show us the whole elevation
16 MR. TASCI: Just for the community to understand, |+e170: 16 you changed? The Stockton?
wia1s 17 those gates will be open at least for some period of sree 17 A  Well, in terms of square footage?
w120 18 time, hopefully closed at night. swazas 18 Q I want so see the picture.
1eidz4 19 Thank you. That is all I have. 11713 19 Stockton side-load., To me, that is
1onszs 20 MR. MERKEL: I have a bunch. Anybody else have |72 20 not a side-load. That is a garage facing the street.
wuz 21  any questions? Dave? wirr 21 I know it's terminology -- what is the terminology?
11438 22 MR. LINDQUIST: One more. I think this might be |7 22 That is not a side-load.
wuss 23  to staff and to yourself, Mr. Collins. 19:47:34 23 A No.
11442 24 In the memorandum, one of the comments 191734 24 Q@ No?
LITERA REPORTING, INC. LITERA REPORTING, INC.
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wiees 1 caught me off guard and I want to make sure I am 1gazas 1 A It depends. Two-one splits. I mean, you
2 crystal clear on it. wwize 2 have two-car garages that are side-loaded into this

11448 3 The applicant will be taking down the lots 3 house, To mitigate that snout look, that you have
w51 4 over several years., There is a chance that only in a wiz4s 4  there now, you have a have corridor of the snout
wasz 5 position in the future to build upon the 105 lots. wizsz &  coming of the front of the house which Is just a
191468 B Am [ to take that that the 13 wwirsz B 3-car. This just allows for, instead of having all
wiasr 7 €levations you have are potentially in addition to wms7 7 three bays attached — you have one of those bays
w1 8 the existing Toll elevation as we marked it? That is wieer 8 which is probably storage, you just have a two-one
ey 9 the way I read that. 1waeer 9 split, which is a side-load with a front load single.
1e5:0 10 MR. HEINEN: So, the reasoning behind that 1e:e1 10 Q I'm just curious. One, I commend you for
w2 11 statement is our crystal ball doesn't work any better et 11 first going to the homeowners. That is a good move
wie 12 than Greg's. Five years down the road, if they don't w117 12 of the country club to show them what you have. That
w2z 13 take down all 150 lots, the elevations that Toll got wae1 13 is good. Unfortunately I wasn't there. My wife was.
waszz 14 approval with will still remain in case Toll wants to 1e1e25 14 1 appreciate you do that.
sets32 18 come back and construct them. M/I is going to be 1e1m2r 18 Did you get many comments -- did you
s 18 putting in additional elevations on top of Toll's. 191220 16 have this elevation --

17 MR. MERKEL: 1eman 17 A This was Introduced to say we'll make a
1154z 18 Q One of your comments you made is our goal at | 11e35 18  commitment, because 20 percent of the discussion was
wsas 19 M/I Homes is not complete with current homeowners. | a1z 19  for the estate lots, to make sure we had a look and
wses 20 Do you have a feel of price points at this point? 1wie40 20 feel of what is commensurate up there.
wissz 21 A We've estimated -- made a review on 600, high | 415 21 Q I will repeat what I heard a ot from the
w57 22 5s, low 6s, if we can get costs go in a direct wiear 22 homeowners, is the concern that the houses that these
1weiees 23 direction, we might be higher. That Is what we wws 23 are next to all have three car garages on the side.
e 24 projected. wnss 24 This is different. Are we okay with that? I would
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115t 1 love to hear from the folks in the audience. w2tse 1 A Yes.
1wme 2 The other comment is, how did you 1oz 2 Q Much smaller?
wiees 3 determine the differential between am executive lot 187201 3 A Yes. Again, this is a sub-market different
wiza 4 and an estate lot. I say that because there are 12208 4 than let's say -- I'm in Plano, completely different.
wwess 5 areas on the -- go back to the plan view of the mzz1 3 But the average square footage there could be here.
wiww 6 community. There are many parts of the community |21 6 There Is a lot of different nuances to that. But
w7 that would be dubbed -- now criginally dubbed a w2216 7 4,000 and north, boy, that is a nonexistent mariet
wwzr 8 different name, but the estate-type lots that are now | 1e2222 8 for a lot of builders.
wun 9 going to be surrounded by the executive lots. You tezzs 9 Q I'm not arguing with that. There is one
wiem 10 made one comment that caught me off guard, it's a 12220 10 hoeuse for sale in the development, you said?
wien 11 tale of two cities, north versus south, I think this 12z 11 A Right.
wiesz 12 accentuates that. That would be my comment there. | w22a 12 Q That--
wies 13 How is that determined -- 102234 13 A But -- and absolutely, but that is a great
11045 14 A These are actually as-planned. You look at a w22s ‘14  point you make. You make a fantastic point. That 2
w1e4e 15 final plat, you have a designated lot. It 12243 18 by 4 in that home being compared to the 2 by 4 I'm
emss 16 essentially ties back to the original. A golf villa 1s2z4s 16 paying for, apple and bananas --
1s0ss 17 lot is labeled as GV on the final plat. 1ezzs0 17 Q Apples and kangaroos.
12007 18 Q Go to the 4th hole, the orange lot there. ezzsa 18 A Itis. When you do the math across the loan,
uz012 19 That whole cul-de-sac has much larger homes, all ezzss 19 I would love to walk you through -- some people in
12010 20 side-load homes. Today based on this we can put a -- | w2sm 20  the business, they are nodding their head, they
w22 21 we can build a 2,200 square foot house, which is the |12 21 understand, it's really difficult.
w220 22  executive size? 1023:05 22 Q And that's your point, you are not really
102032 23 Q Are you saying on that list? 1e2308 23 going to compete with the current homeowners trying
w203z 24 A Yes, w2z 24 to sell --
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PEETEVIN | Q Like a ranch? tezent 1 A Ican't. I guarantee the finlshes In the
12085 2 A You could, right? Yes. w2e1z 2 homaes -- with any new construction community, that is
wm2me B Q I want to make sure I'm clear on that. w2xe 3  where we also have some upside too. I'm not
wan 4 Similarly to the very top which are surrounded by wz1e 4  delivering the marketplace day one a speck completely
wass 8 much larger lots and much larger homes, we can put a | s.ze2s 5 with finishes I know that buyer will go in and say, I
1m2a B ranch house? sezs2e 6 want that home -- we do in some occaslons, but in
102040 1 A Yes. 122 7 this opportunity, it's going to be, okay, you go to
1mgnes 8 Q Thatis my only cencern. I would have loved 1wz 8 the design center - that's our opportunity too to
wmss 9 Lo see the street scape that you had of your wze 9 sell them certain finishes. There Is going to be an
wamss 10 elevations next to existing homes for elevation. w2343 10  add-on to that base price. That's the process. So,
warod 11 A I will never even come close to comparing to w247 11  we can cash out some of that marketplace as well.
w210 12 & 5,000 square foot home. We won't. It's rough. We | 12000 12 But we can't complete what is being out there today.
w2115 13 all know that. There is a reason they are vacant. wazsr 13 Q I appreciate it. I didn't mean te be
w2118 14  There is a reason nobody come in to meet certain w2400 14 argumentative.
w212t 16 minimums or a look and feel of the block to build a 1e2400 15 MR. MERKEL: Just on his behalf, a piece of
1wnzs 16 6,000-square foot home. I'm not sure who is doing 12414 16 plywood is north of $40 right now. When we built
#2120 17 that anymeore. Literally. Show me the pick-up truck 1w2ee 17 houses it was like $15. Thank you.
wass 18 builder who is even remotely interested in building a m2a2e 18 Anyone else?
wzr 19 hold that size. There might be small pockets in 182427 18 EXAMINATION
w200 20 different locations, but it's just a different -- w2es 20 MR. LINDQUIST:
1e21:05 21 Q Let's talk about that. The market today, if 192438 21 Q We still have requirements regarding energy
wz14e 22 you could define in a couple sentence, the market w240 22 consideration for homes? The international --
w258 23 today, what is different than what is there today? 192440 23 A I'm not here to modify any of your current
w2150 24 Smaller? wzes1 24  building codes or any -- asking for adoptions of
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wass 1 anything different. 1sam2z 1 Q Ithink it's really important -- which I was
wasr 2 Q And then, on the exterior materials w2 2 pleasantly surprised when I saw the layouts, Chris
wso 3 themselves, we are recognizing the cost of materials w2z ¢ you mentioned it, but the comment on landscaping.
w2sos 4 has pretty much gone crazy. woea 4 So, today, if you -- if your house is
12ty 5 When that happens, sometimes we can weeae 5 back-to-back with another house or on the golf
wasis 6 lose quality. T would like to ask you, your siding weez 8 Course, you do not have to have landscaping at all.
w7 that is not masonry, what will that material be? 12645 4 Your proposal has landscaping designs, correct?
182525 8 A The horizontal? That is hardy plank or hardy 102850 8 A Right.
sz 9  board -- o850 9 @ Standard design has to have landscaping
w2533 10 @ Cement? w2ess 10 provided by the builder?
19253 11 A Fiber board, yeah. 100855 11 A  Yes.
10250 12 Q There is no changes in the masonry? 1e2850 12 EXAMINATION
12582 13 A No. iszeor 13 BY MS. MASSEL:
102564 14 Q And so that will be the same. Okay. Will 1wzeet 14 Q Are all of the side-loads the two-plus-one
wass 18 some of the -- some of the extras or add-ons include wzees 18 split?
12600 16 energy improvements such as voter tax -- 1s:ze08 16 A No.
1e2e10 17 A What was the last one you said? 1ez2906 17 Q They are not. There are some that are
1o28ms 18 Q Voter tax? w2s10 18 completely three side.
102617 19 A I don't know what that is. 1z2013 19 A Right.
1n2e1s 20 Q Electricity coming from the sun onto your 122013 20 @ Maybe you can show some of those? While you
1220 21 roof -- w2e17 21  are doing that, I was going to ask, when you are
tezee 22 A Solar panels? No, we don't sell that. That w2eie 22 sitting with your design center, is there an option
w2 23  is a different industry. It's tough for residentlal, 1w 28 to add more stone or brick to the front of the house?
w23 24  but no, we don't offer that. We have energy 100824 24 A No, not to the elevation. That is all
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wewas 1  efficient homes, obviously high-efficiency furnace, w20z 1  interior finishes and some volume space that could be
wws2 2 water heater, those are obviously strict items as w2z 2 added --
w2 3 they exist today. w2 3 @ Could you add another option if they wanted
wzroe 4 Q If you want to see how to square -- to square w2 4 to add more stone or brick to their --
ware B @ l-story -- w2um D A Wae could do a custom quote if they wanted to.

6 MR. HEINEN: Mr. Lindquist, we can't hear you. w2041 6 I highly doubt they'd want to, if they want to spend
7  You need to use your microphone. wmzes 7 another 40 or $50,000.
ware 8 MR. LINDQUIST: 12a40 8 Q What phase were you planning to buy the
wzw 9 Q And I'm the one that is deaf, too. We have a wzesa 9§ estate lots?
wzrzs 10 subdivision that is being built in our backyard that 1wzess 10 A Don't know yet.
wzzs 11 does have a lot of larger two-story hornes and every 1ezmss 11 Q@ You will work on golf villas first and see
were 12 once and awhile it has a one-story home. If anybody | iezsse 12 how those go, and if thing are going well, you think
wzras 13 wants to see what that locks like, drop in to eaoaz 13 you would venture into the estate lots?
wzzee 14 Stonebridge and it will tell you right away what that 1za00a 14 A Yes.
1=zr43 15 is going to look like. And those lots are relatively 1ea005 15 Q I'm trying to see what phase you will move
1szrer 16 small lots. They are not large lots. We have ws0or 16 into those --
wez2zs0 17 something there that we can actually look at and see 1aa008 17 A Yes, it's market-dependent, but we will focus
wzrss 18 what we think of it. wantt 18 our attention on the areas where we can keep trades
wzrss 19 And most of the people that are doing w25 19  and move down a street, so that is the logical
w2rse 20 the solar cells are doing them from outside, not 1manie 20 starting point.
wmzzos 21  necessarily through -- through the building 1g:a020 21 Q And just to confirm, for the estate lots,
1zae 22 contractors. I think that is it. 2024 22 those are a minimum of 3400 plus?
1mzmn 23 EXAMINATION 18:3028 23 A Yes.
102822 24 MR. MERKEL: 19027 24 Q Square foot homes and they have to be
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w2 1 side-loads? wazo 1 I am going to buy that iot.
1ma020 2 A Yes. w32 2 MR. MERKEL: All right. Come on up.
maca2 3 Q Thank you. 3 @ Ann Sieverson {phonetic), 25 Briar Creek
1paze 4 A And the Sumner and the Hudson are 1waass 4 Drive.
waez 8 traditional -- if we can call traditional three car 193336 5 I would like to give my opinion that
1war 6 side-load, and the other two. wame 6 that two and one side car garage looks horrible, It
100061 7 @ Thank you. waxes 7 looks like a one-car garage house. It's my opinion.
1052 8 MR. MERKEL: Anybody on the planning commission? | 1ssze 8 And also, I want to ask them if the
wass 9 Any questions? Thank you, Mr. Collins. wasso 8@ houses they were going to build are similar to the
waor 10 At this peint, I would love to hear from wasse 10 Lake Zurich High School, that are you building now,
wates 11 everyone in the audience. Again, if you were sworn wseer 11 are they the same type of models?
emos 12 in, you stood up, that is great. If you have a 1a340 12 Also, I put some pictures to show you
130 13 comment now you would like to make sure we all hear, | a2 13 how -- I know they made changes, I just didn't thing
was 14 we can re-swear you in or newly swear you in. waer 14 they fit that good with our -- I mean, when I printed
1228 15 You can step up and state your name and wxz 15 out the brick ones from the subdivision --
ens 16 address and your question or concern. Please come 193424 16 MR. MERKEL: Could you point out, I think you
warar 17 forward. waezs 17 know which ones --

18 EXAMINATION. 192027 18 Q@ These are the golf villas right out of my

19 Q I have a question about the estate lots. wazz 19 cul-de-sac. These are the homes, if M/I built right
matae 20 Neil Kolich (phonetic) 14 Tournament Drive north. reaese 20  now in Lake Zurich -- I took pictures of them today.
1e3151 21 What kind of guarantee do we have waaz 21 I thought that looks like a mix match. It didn't
watss 22 that -- obviously it appears that the estate homes wwaes 22  really fit. But, adding the side car garage would
wass 23 are so sporadic, they're going to be the last ones. wus 23  definitely help a lot, but still, a lot of that weod
wazos 24 What is the guarantee that after the other three are 1wuss 24  and nonbrick doesn't look in place and smaller, but I
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wazos 1 done and successful, we are not going to be left in wasee 1 understand, But at least if they do the three-car
wzee 2 the cold? wasa 2 garage and don't do the 2-and-1 would blend in nicer.
1wz 3 MR. MERKEL: Left in the cold meaning? nasie 3 The golf villas, there's probably like eight there,
a2z 4 A Like those lots are not even going to be w314 4 near Briar Creek and Whisper Creek. There's five
wwzis 9  developed at all, the remaining ones in the north uwasr &  empty lots and eight already built homes. Soit's
1maz1s 6 side. w2 6 going to make a big difference in the neighborhood,
a2 T MR. COLLINS: So, put another way, am I s« 7 what it looks like, because there will be so many new
wazs 8 guaranteeing that I wiil close on the estate lot. 1wz 8  homes?
1w 9 Again, I'm a contract purchaser in phases and I can 1wz 9 MR. MERKEL: Where is this?
wazz 10  pick and choose where I want to develop these things. | 13520 10 Q Briar Creek near the gate there. The golf
wazss 11 Like I said, the market is going to tell me where and wsssz 11 villas, they back up to the 13th hole -- or around
1w2a7 12 what price point and what makes the most sense. Not | wssss 12 there, right as you come in that gate, the resident
sz 13 to mention, I guess, school districts in this w2 13 only gate, the empty lots, there is a lot of them.
wna 14 community, which is very unique. We don't even know | wss« 14  There is like five out of eight homes. I think there
1wzas 16  how that is going to be handled in the marketplace. wss47 18 is five empty lots and eight golf villas that are
1:zas 16 It's not much different, but information for the wassz 16 currently there. So these are going to make a big
ws2s2 17 buyer that might point us in the right direction. I wessss 17 impression. There is like -- okay, there is 16 Briar
s 18  can't give a guarantee I'm there 100 percent of the naso0 18 creek and empty lot and 19 and two empty lots and
12se 19 time end of the community closing this out. I will sz 19 there is like 17 and then there is an empty lot and
w3z 20 give you a guarantee I will do my best to close on wazoe 20 then there is -- next to me I'm at 620 --
nzes 21  this and start and current environment telling me I resen 21 MR. MERKEL: Okay.
wasos 22 should. We are in a marketplace we need to continue | 1eses 22 A -- okay. So there,
1w 23 to capture the momentum that we have and move 13025 23 MR. BRANKIN: Thank you. For the benefit of
wais 24  forward, I can't go on record giving you a guarantee waezy 24  Jaime, our court reporter. It's not a real natural
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waws 1 conversation, but if we can talk one at a time? wanso 1  are there restrictions -- I know the estate lots
w3 2 Thank you. wara 2 have, you know, a minimum of 3400, so it does fit
1o 3 Q I think Briar Creek is up north there. I was a7 3 that, but will all the other floor plans fit on all
w0 4 trying to find it on my phone from that picture. w2z 4 the other lots how they are based today?
sz B IU's the north end, so it won't be the first phase or tednze D A Yes.
wweae B  anything like that. But I think it's -- yeah, see 104028 6 Q The other guestion I had was, we have seen
wwa4 7 the Hawthorn Woods shield for the club? Right above |« 7 labor shortages in terms of laborers that are working
wass 8 that, There is a cul-de-sac with a park, the green wast 8 on homes and things of that nature, how will you guys
waoo 9 ball, you have five or six homes, but a lot of purple waese 9 deal with that in ~- in comparison to the build of
wesros 10 there, so these homes are totally going to be -- 1eae3s 10 the homes and actually putting up homes and can only
waror 11 there is going to be a lot of them, I will say right weanz 11 sell one or two properties at the time, are you going
sears 12 now they are beautiful, really big expensive homes 1eanas 12 to wait until you have a batch of themn to go? How do
1wz 13 that a lot of people paid a lot of money for, but wac40 13 you feel with that? And dealing with the custom
wars 14 whatever they put there, it's going to be a big w4054 14 niche of what you are offering. I think that is all
w1 15 statement, There is not going to be just one or two. waose 18 I have.
s 16 There is going to be like five M/I Homes and Toll 184050 16 MR. MERKEL: Thank you, Mike.
war2s 17 Brother and all over sold over million dollars or 1w 1T A  With respect to ~- I mean, labor, it's a
warz 18  close to that. All big car garages, nice lots, and w404 18  massive issue. That is not going to go away, We
waras 19 back to either wetlands or golf villas. That is the w4111 19 know that. But, because of our size, because of the
ez 20 point 1 wanted to make, sometimes a picture is worth | 1wss 20 way we handle the process with the buyer, with touch
waraz 21  a thousand words. Thank you for listening. 1wa2 21  points -- we have two points of surveys where the
19a74s 22 MR, MERKEL: Thank you. 14127 22  buyer will give us surveys, so, we have to meet buyer
199768 23 Q My name is Husky. I'm at 50 Tournament 104134 23 expectations. It's the biggest purchase of their
waeee 24 South. I'm still very concerned about sizes of these a0 24  life, they are moving their lives, committing to
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wswer 1 different homes. I think they are too dang small for 143 1 certain dates. We have done our best of what we can
w2z 2 what the properties offer. They are going to look 14145 2 do to control that environment. One of those is not
waets 3 [ost on the estate and the executive lots because of waee 3 getting out in front of us. We have sales caps in
w21 4 the size of the lots compared to the existing homes, 1warsz 4 certain communities. We can sell 15 to 20 homes a
wmwzs 8 the estates in the executive. wase 5 month in some of our communities. We cap them
w2 6 We talked about this three and a half wsziz 6 because we have no labor, So we have a commitment
wsead 7 months ago when we had our meeting with M/I at the |1wse 7 from our trades that we can know and -- our 2022
w4 8 country club, and I don't see anything that 1maziz 8 plans are done. We know our production schedule, all
waeas 9 materially changed. They flipped a couple garages wazie 9 of our comments, when we start and when close is
a7 10 and brought the same stuff. It's not going to cut 124215 10 going to be. And that was the only way we could do
waes 11 it. I don't remember hearing anybody say anything wazzz 11  it. That is when the specks start and finish at the
waes 12 from their side of the house about anything 4,000 1422z 12 end, but that is only way we can do it in today's
wsees 13 feet or bigger, there needs to be a component like waezz 13  current environment to commit to the buyer to make
waos 14 that, at least one, maybe two, 4,000 and 4200. The wazzs 14  sure we had a timeline that makes sense and we can
w15  estate and executive lots demand that. It will sell 14207 15  meet It for the year. That is how we are handling it
warre 16 it. 8, 900 it will sell. We see it going on all w4zt 16 in today's marketplace. Once we have a commitment
1asz2s 17 around us. Little tiny houses that are going up 14255 17 from the blggest guys, carpenters, we ca mitigate
e 18 getting 500,000 on a postage-stamp sized lot, which wazet 18 that with a process and a cadence on our production
1anas 19 are lot line to lot line, this is a much better 194306 19  schedule.
1w 20  property. Don't sell us out. 1943:00 20 MR. MERKEL: Yes?
19:30:40 21 MR. MERKEL: Thank you. 21 {Witness sworn.)
102056 22 Q Mike Romer, & Winged Foot Drive, 19:0310 22 @ My name is Silverman, 17 Harborside Way. I'm
109950 23 So, will all the floor plans be available on a3 23  guess I'm a little concerned because the whole
14005 24  all of the lots that are here? Do they all fit or w4 24 contractual buying, those who bought in the beginning
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uwazze 1  bought with Toll assuming they would build this big wesse 1 agreement the minimum square footage for ranches were
nwass 2 forest. Now, hearing that you are only going to wars 2 1500 for golf villas and 1700 or executive and
wasr 3 commit to a few, we could potentially have a third 1maros 3 estates.
w4z 4 persen come in and build in our community. That 14708 & MR. MERKEL: I think they were that small then,
wazss 3 means redo all this again. We are going to have warr B Q@ 50 Tournament South again. Our house was
wazay & maybe possibly three different sats of homes that warz2 6 originally built by Toll. It was 2800 square feet.
wazsz 7 those of us who have been here from the building have 1ear2s 7 I'm not the original owner. It was a sunroom added
wwaass 8  to go through again and again and again. So I guess, war2e 8  toit, and it's now 2,980 square feet, ranch, three
wass 9 when we met with you at the golf club, I just was ware 9 bedroom, two and a half bath. There are some others
izacos 10 assuming that you were going to take over everything. waraz 10 like ours minus the sunroom, putting themn in the 2800
eas08 11 I didn't realize you were just going to do it in bits w470 11 plus range,
w441 12 and pieces concerning how it fits you. Toll had 1oar0 12 MR. MERKEL: Thank you.
1w4e16 13 enough money to bail on us. The rest of us staying 1za758 13 Was there any ranch elevations in our
waso §4  weren't that luckily. We have to fight the storm. I wsrss 14 packet?
w2z 18 just wish that you would have come in and said we are 1sa75r 18 MR. HEINEN: Yes. It was the last set of
wuze 16 going to do, we are going to do it right, as opposed wsrse 16 elevations in the packet, I think the Elbridge?
w4 17 to bits and pieces. I just want to put that on 1424 17 MR. MERKEL: Yes, sir?
1ae3s 18 there, 1suan2s 18 Q My name is Jim Konisek (phonetic) I'm at
1magas 19 MR. MERKEL: Thank you. wanm 19 61 South Tournament Drive. I do have a ranch and
104007 20 Anymore comments? Come up, please. 1sae 20 it's just shy of 3,000 square feet; three bedroom,
19505 21 Q Margo {inaudible) 20 Championship Parkway. I wanse 21 three and a half bath. That is a nice -- that is a
wasos 22 agree with the -- first of all, we are really happy waeas 22 nice size house. And I don't know if we should go
wesoe 23 to have M/I here. I have lived on Championship for 1eae4s 23  any smaller than that.

24 two and a half years and in a townhouse before that 10an:51 24 MR. MERKEL: What was the size of yours?
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wssis T for a couple years also with my husband. 1 @ 3,000.
1nasz 2 I agree with the lady on Briar Creek about 10an:8 2 I do have cne question for the board up
w4sza 3 housing sizes and what things will lock like. I am wees0 3 here. Have we invited -- is this the only builder
wassn 4 very concerned about the 2300 square foot ranch wsooe 4 that we have invited to this distance?
w4sss 5 houses. I'm not concerned about a ranch. I am 104808 9 MR. MERKEL: That is a question for staff.
was2a ©  concerned about 2300 square feet next to really large 1e40:11 6 A Have we invited Halty? Have we invited
w4sas 7 houses. On Championship Parkway, our street is not w4ete 7 Manian? Have we invited any other builders to take a
wasas 8 affected, but, if we build 2300 square foot houses in 1waze 8 look at this?
wasss § our community with two bedrooms, think about what wapis 9 MR. HEINEN: The village doesn't invite potential
easoo 10 that will do to the prices of the larger houses. I 10 developers -
wasss 11 think 2300 is just not enough and that is my primary 10ae22 11 Q Who does? This is our community.
waere 12 concern. I think M/I is a great builder. We are 1oam2s 12 MR. HEINEN: I understand. The builders
wae1s 13 really happy to have you here. Our HOA has been 1an27 13 approached the village with a plan and a concept with
wess10 14 doing an amazing job keeping costs in check, because wanz 14 subdivisions, As of recently over the past 12,
1wsss 18 we are running a deficit, and we would like to be 1zaz3s 15 13 years, M/I Homes is the only one that has
14s20 16 welcoming, but I think we need to rethink some the 1eaz3a 16 approached the village to develop.
w422 17 issues being discussed tonight and maybe make some 1gazan 1T Q So we only invited one builder?

1437 18  recommendations. 1e445 18 MR. HEINEN: The village did not invite anyone.
104038 19 MR. MERKEL: If I can dovetail off of that? Do 1e40.07 19 MR. MERKEL: If's the only interest we had in
maest 20 we know, there are current ranches within the country w450 20 those years.

w4za4 21 club community today ~- just so I'm clear, what are 10452 21 Q Pardon me?

1waeer 22  the size of those? 10452 22 MR. MERKEL: That Is the only interest we have
194850 23 MR. HEINEN: The Toll ranch? We have to go back w4nse 23 had in building out those lots.

sass7 24 and check the permits. I know in the original 1es000 24 Q@ Nobody else Is interested? I have a couple
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wseos 1 other questions for the builders. We talk prices 1541z 1 I totally understand the difficulty in the
1seor 2 here. I know a lot of the homes came in over a wsee 2 business world in this climate in this economy to
wsxte 3 million dollars when they were criginally built. wsezn 3 come in and build the kind of homes that we own now,
s 4 Right now, you know, a lot of the people that lost, uwssza 4 but there has to be a little bit more give. The
weaie 9 you know, quite a bit of money with them, and we are wsazs 5 homes, the quality that we have, the size that we
wmz 6 talking you know, 500, $600,000, we know that wmse2 6 have, I realize -- and I think everybody here would
wsezs 7 materials have gone up over the last year wsszr 7 agree, we would love to have more homeowners to help
wseze 8  dramatically, what, 80 percent -- I don't want to go wsesr 8 with homeowner association fees, but 2300 square feet
w2 9 through everything, but I'm in construction as well. wwsee7 @ for a ranch is just toc small. Maybe you don't want
wsze 10 And I was just wondering if when we say we'il build w5461 10 to go all the way up to 28, but you have to make it a
weses 11 500 to $600,000 homes, if we are going to cutback on wsess 11 little bigger. These lots aren't exactly tiny lots.
wesoqs 12 == I think one of you gentlemen asked the question wsser 12 And if we are going to make some conformity to look
sesoae 13 about the quality, if you are going to stick in that ws=os 13 like we belong -- I understand. I'm torn. I wouid
wss2 14 range, you have to cut somewhere if the prices are wsson 14 like those homes built out but, on the other hand,
usse 15 higher, so that would be a question for you people. wssiz 19 you can't bring down the quality of the area.

15050 16 And the materials that we are using outside, uss21 16 MR. MERKEL: Thank you. Sir?

stz 17 T also looked at the homes right across from the high 1es530 17 Q@ Iam Tom Lemanski. I live at 18 Red Tail

stoe T8  school over here that you just put up, and honestly, 1wess3s 18 Drive. Admittedly we live in the townhouses. We've

s 19 1o me, you know, it's a Toll home compared to your wsseo 19 lived there for four years. My biggest concern about

wse 20 home, and nothing against your homes, but I looked at | 1ess44 20  our neighborhood is the all these empty lots. 1

uwszo 21 five different development before I bought in to ossa0 21  listen to people going, this isn't Toll Brothers.

wsrze 22  Toll. And there was a reason I bought in to Toll. wsss2 22 Well, they aren't there anymore. The reality is,

wstan 23 To me, Toll Brothers is top notch, whether it's 1esses 23 it's 2022, From my perspective, they have a lower

wstas 24 inside, outside, the whole 9 yards. And I looked at weso¢ 24  quality home than Toll Brothers, that is preferable
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stz 1 some of your homes., On a scale of 1 to 10, it wser 1 over 100 empty lots over the next five years if we
wmstaa 2 doesn't compare to what Toll Brothers does, and that wwse1s 2 keep dragging our feet on this.
ws4e 3 IS just my opinion. Thank you. 195613 3 As a homeowners association, we need those
105150 @ MR. MERKEL: Thank you. wser7 4 lots filled. We need people living in them that are
wsz0 B Q Ann Sieverson, 20 Briar Creek Drive, I just wse2t 8§  paying association dues to keep our subdivision
wszoz 6 wanted to let the board know that there is a ranch 15626 8 viable. We can knit pick the architecture, but --
wmsz0s 7 hext to me, 22 Briar Creek Drive, it's 2,961 square wss2e 7 and I empathize with those that spent a million
mszos 8 feet, just in case you want a reference of a ranch in wssa 8  dollars on a Toll Brothers home and not have
wsz1a @ our subdivision. wses 9  something next door that looks quite like that, but
1ez20 10 MR. MERKEL: Mr. Collins, on that comment, I'm 1ess3s 10 it's 2022 and I think we need to realize that, and
wszas 11 [fooking at the Elbridge floor plan. What is the 1ese40 11 realize that these people have a business to run.
w52 12 square footage of that home? That's the ranch. wse«2 12 And if they can sell a million dollar home, they
15252 13 THE WITNESS: That's the Elbridge. It's 2225 to 1ese61 13 would but a 6,000 square foot -- they would be doing
wszss 14 2443, wessss 14 that, but Toll Brothers is gone. If they could do
105205 15 MR. MERKEL: Thank you. wsroe 18 that, they would still be here.

105026 16 Q Susan Bower. My husband and I live at 10 1es70z 16 MR. MERKEL: Thank you.

wsaas 17 Tournament Drive South., We're basically new owners, | 1esmie 17 Q My name is a Brian Silverman, 47 Tournament
sz 18 but I can tell you we did research before we came 1es744 18 Drive North. I think we can all agree that these

wsas 12 here. We did lock at M/I Homes. I don't remember es71s 19 homes are going to be substantially different than

wsaas 20 the name of the new construction, but on 22 is there 1es71e 20  what we have in the neighborhood. I agree with the
wsaes 21  an Elbridge model that you are building here? 1 esr2z 21 last guy who said, look, it is what it is, maybe we

15350 22 thought so. That is one of the models we are looking 1ws723 22 just get these lots built out and add to the

wsez 23 at, roughly 2300 square feet. It is small. Okay? 1es72s 23 homeowners association and stuff, but we have to make
w07 @4  We own a ranch. It is 2800 square feet. esr2e 24 sure, one, that there is some conformity to the
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stz 1 neighborhood. There has to be. wose 1  doesn't do that. DR Horton doesn't do that. No
osT 2 And when they are saying they are only w2 builder looks at a community and says I'm going to
wsrie 3 going commit to X amount, first of all, we talked moe 3  plat these lots and guarantee I will build on them.
wsrzze 4 about this a number of times. What is the amount 207 4 It doesn't matter whether they're developing a lot or
wsrar 5 that you are committed to? How many are we building | 0w0sc 5§ buying finished lots, they may be buying in bulk or
wsre B out and what does that tiered plan look like? w0 6 over time, but the fact of the matter is no one ever
wsrea 7 Because, if this goes to a third builder, what kind ao0se 7 has an obligation to go build a home. You can buy
uwszz 8 of neighborhood do we have? We have this beautiful {20100 8 the lots and might hold them in inventory, which is
w9 planned community, and what does it look like 5 vears |20 9 what Toll has done for 20 years, but there is never a
werss 10 down the line if there's three builders? I think 2017 10  guarantee to build.
wsenz 11 it's challenging with two, so I would like a little 200100 11 This is as close as you have gotten. If
wwseos 12  more substance behind what is going to happen. 200112 12 Toll had other buyers, they wouldn't have let M/1
sgsan 13 MR. MERKEL: Thank you, Mr. Silverman. mams 13 purchase the homes in quarters over a couple years.
e T4 A If in the first year we have roughly 14 They would have forced them into a negotiated
sz 19 30 percent of the community pretty much closed up, so 15 position to buy all of the lots so Toll is gone.
15626 16 we have a contractual commitment to close over time |05 16  Make no mistake, Toll does not want to be here. Toll
wseo 17 and we accelerate, if all goes well and that first 2oz 17  wants to be gone. But this is the only buyer and the
wseas 18  year we are 30 plus lots, third of the community in anz 18  phase takedown of these lots was the only structure
wsea 19 the first year. So between 30 and 40 you can 20 19 that Toll had to get out of the community.
1se42 20 guesstimate is where our position would be at a 2001:35 20 So, I think -- I understand there is
wseas 21 minimum. More than likely, it's all going to depend 20018 21  a lot of frustrated homeowners and I understand why
1sess 22 on the time of year we can get in the ground, where 00143 22 they are frustrated, but there are business realities
wss 29 we might have to do winter foundations. And again, woe7 23  and no one is going to buy this today, tomorrow, or
wseoy 24  it's all market dependent. I understand. zots0 24 in S years and make a guarantee that they are going
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smsons 1 There is a general concern of everyone. 202 1 to come and build the lots. You don't want to see
wses 2 It's 20 years of vacancy. And everybody is worried nosr 2 that happen, because at that point in time they are
wsez 3  about someone commit to buying. I can't give the u0tse 3 not saying, Mr. Merkle, what do you want in your
wsais 4 100 percent in blood commitment. I'm sorry I can't. 2oz 4 house, I will build it to your specification. They
tose1s B I wish I could. But that is the business world we 2 5  are saying, I will decide what goes in this home and
1wseza 6 livein. I can't do that. wezee 6  build it to whatever I think the market bears and
105024 f It's just as important that we did go on 20oz11 7 will not have a custom nature that drives higher
wsezs 8 record with the homeowner association and the 2exis 8 prices. You don't want somebody building on speck
wsew 9  contract purchaser how we are going to structure it mazia @ lots. I think those are important considerations as
wseaa 10 so that everyone is aware that the vacant lot next to mez21 10 we consider the structure.
wsew 11 them is an M/I lot the day we start building on the 200201 11 MR. MERKEL: Yes?
wsiaz 12 first lot. We want to be clear. That is how we set 0023 12 Q Jordan Silverman, 20 Doral Drive. I have a
s 13 up the expectation with our group as well. So that, xozar 13 question for you guys. You guys are doing it, and
wsest 14 again, cadence of all goes well, and hope it will, is w0ze0 14 it's beating a dead horse, but y'ou don't have a
wsesr 18 between 30 and 40 at a minimum in that first year. wozz 18 commitment on the amount of homes you can guy. Is

16 MR. WHITAKER: If I could add one other 24s 16 there anything contractually that prevents another

17 thing? oz4e 17 home builder, say a Polti or anybody else, from
2001 18 Russ Whitaker, counsel for M/I Homes. My wnzss 18 coming in and taking X amount of lots while you are
seoi2 19 firm does land-development work throughout the nuzs 19 doing yours and we have three, four, five builders?
2oons 20  suburbs. We probably plat 5,000 lots a year. I can 200301 20 If you are not making a full commitment to
oz 21 say that in the last 15 or 20 years, never when we woxes 21  them, are they making a commitment to you that you
20024 22 have platted a lot, have we ever made a guarantee on |00 22  have first right of refusal of all the lots?
wmz 23 every single lot. Toll did not do that when they 200310 23 MR. WHITAKER: That's a great question. The
2wz 24 built. Toll didn't do that on other projects. M/I w1 24 answer is yes. We have the right to buy all 105 lots

LITERA REPORTING, INC. LITERA REPORTING, INC.

D6/09/2022 09:10:58 AM Page 45 to 48 of 90 12 of 23 sheets




49 51
2eeaas 1 that are finished in the community over a defined = 1 buying is the category we are carrying for. There is
2os 2 period of time. I don't remember off the top of my 20s28 2 No change to any lot metrics. Let's be honest, many
o 8 head exactly what that time frame is, but Toll cannot 20630 3 of the communities we go into and there is a bused
22a 4 sell to any other third-party during that contract wmess 4 subdivision, we are changing lot metrics in order to
ae2e 5  timeline. And we can accelerate the timeline, wmesr B figure out how do we reshuffle the deck here because
sz1 B assuming things are going well, we will accelerate 041 6 something broke and put it back together. We are not
03¢ 7 that timeline. If things aren't going well, we can 0645 7 doing that. We are building on the large lots
03¢ 8  buy pursuant to the schedule, because if I buy a lot wosse 8  without any change,

00340 & today and can't build for three years, I pay interest 200851 9 MR. MERKEL: This is a question for staff. The
200z42 1@ on the carrier of that lot. This is a way of keeping xoss: 10 lot she's talking about -- so we are saying when Toll
20034 11 my costs down and be able to build most efficiently. =wms? 11 left, that was designated as an executive lot?
200852 12 MR. MERKEL: And if I can add to that? 200701 12 MR. HEINEN: When Toll originally came in, they
2o0xss 13 Ms. Silverman, the hodgepodge builder comment, could | 200me 13 had a set-up verbiage for individual lots and that
2e0n 14 M/I build three homes and then the market tanks and woror 14 changed. It's just a marketing designation. The
woeos 18 say they are out, back to Toll? Could that happen? moria 18 site map that M/I put together, the estate lots,
200414 16 MR. WHITAKER: We are buying in minimum worzn 16 executive, golf villa lots, are what the current
=oerr 17 groupings, so I think we take five at each closing. a0r2z 17 marketing term is for those individual lots.
200420 18 MR. MERKEL: Say five, and then say, Toll this is w0725 18 I think when they originally came in, they
a0e22 19 not working for us. xorze 19 had had signature lots. Those signature lots changed
200425 20 MR. WHITAKER: I mean, if things in Russia go aorm 20 to executive lots. The estate lots were always --
2xuzr 21  south, we can say tormorrow that we are not going to s0orar 21 MR. MERKEL: Sometime when marketing these and
00420 22 buy the first -- 200r40 22 still actively marketing -- which I don't remember,

23 MR. MERKEL: Just sc everyone is clear on how xer2 23 all those lots got changed to executive?
s 24 that works. 200748 24 MR. HEINEN: Correct.

LITERA REPORTING, INC. LITERA REPORTING, INC.

50 52
200445 1 Any other comments or questions? PY PP | MR. MERKEL: There was only one -- just executive
200458 2 Q I'm Patty Chiselko, 8 Glen Club court. 0740 2 and estate at that point?

200502 3 My question is: The street I lived 200752 3 MR. HEINEN: There is executive, executive 120,
20508 4 on, those were signature lots. Now they are being werss 4 golf villas, the estate, and the signature. 1 think
20610 8§  annexed or now they are executive, so I have almosta | 20n § there were five different designations. That was the
awesie 6 4,000 square foot house, and if you follow the floor w0s04 & original marketing for Toll. And that did change
.50 ¢ plan they are recommended, I could have a ranch that |20 7 over time through their marketing to what we have
woez2 8  is 2300 square feet next to mine. Unfortunately, on wosiz 8 before us, which is the estate lots, the executive
s 9 my street, there are only two house that are about w015 9 lots and the golf lots.

aoss0 10 4,000 square feet. I think it's similar down where 200818 10 Q On the street where I'm at, those were

w535 11 they have 3 or 4 houses that are the larger, what we weezz 11 considered the signature master collection by Toll
zesse 12 would consider, estate homes. woezr 12 Brothers, and now you're making them executive, so
so05a1 13 I'm wondering how that got changed from anoea0 13 it's not.

0544 14 mine was an estate -- that whole street was an estate | 2080 14 MR. WHITAKER: And I can bring these up and show
asae 15 on the original plans from Toll and now it's xwoess 185 them to the commission, These are the six -- the
.54 16 downgraded to an executive? Because my lot is almost | 02 16 subdivision was platted in phases. So there are six
a0s58 17 an acre lot. woesz 17 phases to the existing subdivision and I have in
200550 18 MR. MERKEL: I asked a similar question, you said xoe4s 18 front of me the final plat for phases 1 through 6.
aoeee 19 it much more eloquently than I did. How do you aoest 19 We can go through and look at all these plats and see
0603 20  determine executive to estate? Maybe we can touch on |zeess 20 how they were designated.

0006 21  that again? 200865 21 So, for example, Hawthorn Woods Country
200812 22 MR. WHITAKER: There is no change in noese 22 Club phase one here, there is an executive

mos1s 28  designations. We are not changing any designation xnoxez 23 designation here, which ties to the lot above, so we
017 24 between estate, executive or golf villa. What we are aomos 24  have done through and color coded on these plats to
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000 1 @ssure that we are not changing any designation on a w1zi2 1  out.
aoe1s 2 final plat of subdivision, which is a legal recorded 201248 2 What I do think is there is obviously a
noes 3 document that creates the lot and ties to the 2214 3 concern around the ranch, but I believe there is a
woeen 4 annexation agreement, which is the document that will |z 4  probably need for a ranch. I have a first-floor

§ govern, 2220 § master and an elderly family member living with me
20028 6 I can't say what was done in marketing azza © that can't go up and down stairs, so I guess there
200928 7 Materials, but we can say definitively -- we can 21235 1 heeds to be some type of solution fer a ranch. I'm
xoez 8  submit these into the record if we feel like it's anz2e 8 rambling a little bit.
2 9 necessary, but these are the legal documents that 200za1 9 My point is, I don't think empty lots
oz 10 created the terms we are using and we are not w222 10 don't do any good for out community. They don't
200041 11 changing them. 2e1zar 11 deliver tax. They drive down our property value.
suenas 12 Q I guess my question is, for my size house, 12ze1 12 They create a less ideal aesthetic within the
200007 13 you can call it whatever you want, executive estate, w1z 13  community. If someone new is moving in, they see a
w051 14 could they build a ranch that is 2300 square feet wzaa 14 bunch of empty lots, causes them to be concerned. My
a00ess 185 next to my house based on the current -- that is my wm1zs2 186 primary concern is I don't like the empty lots and I
mieee 16 understanding based on the current. 21zse 16 don't think they are good for the community at large,
201008 17 MR. WHITAKER: So, the answer to that -- is aazsa 17 but I agree there are changes to what the customers
wier 18  actually, worse condition than what you believe, In 21302 18 are looking for. I think we have to have an open
wwn 19 the executive section, you could build today a 1700 21205 19 mind and find some type of common ground to help
21 20 square foot ranch. We are proposing to increase that 21308 20  complete the community and fill some of these lots.
ez 21  standard to say we cannot build a 1700 square foot sezz 21 Thank you.
024 22 ranch, the minimum size would be 2,225, So, we are 201323 22 MR. MERKEL: Thank you.
0 23 actually taking the minimum standards as they are set | 204324 23 Q My name is Mike Wall, 89 club Court. I just
2004 24 forth in the legal documents and we are increasing w320 24 want a little clarity of what homes are selling for
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2006 1 them. aaza 1 and what I believe is a comparable claim in Avery
20007 2 MR. MERKEL: You can see the frustration that 233 2 Ridge. It looks like a lot of those houses are
o0 3 everyone bought a home here that the people are w3 very -- they are a little smaller, but similar to
e0az & talking that -- her house was in the premiere x34a 4 those being foreclosed.
ey B executive area, and now she is learning that it was 20348 B Is it true that probably the highest
o051 6 platted as a 1700 square foot house, could be next to zmze1 B priced home is the model that is going for sale for
20056 7 her, all those homes, which is obviously a shot in acasa 7 around $900,000, is that accurate? Is that the
o0se O the face. wase 8 model, the white house, is that being listed for a
201100 9 Q What if you just got rid of the whole ranch? 20a04 9 little over 900? So, if we here 5, low 6s, but the
e 10 Seems like people made comment of the ranch. Why do | 201446 10 reality is, Westbury is one of those empty nester
2007 11 we have to have a ranch? If they want a ranch, let 20418 11 ranch homes are selling in the 6s, right?
2at10 12 them buy a Toll Brothers ranch. 201420 12 A Yeah.
201128 13 Q I'm Lauren Vondrasek, 84 Tournament Drive 20421 13 Q So when you open up a home, is it typical for
2 14 South, I respect everyone's opinions that have been 201420 14 M/I to do maybe 20 percent of options above the base
1140 18 represented today. I understand we have homeowners |z1as 18 price or more?
e 18 that bought under certain assumptions and certain 1z 16 A Could be 10 percent or more.
2est:as 17 conditions and those conditions have changed. 1 20148 17 Q When you say high 5s it could be starting
200150 18 understand the customer is looking for something 201403 18 point, it could be another 25 percent on top of that?
2152 19 completely different than what was sold 15 years age. 201405 19 A Yeah.
zats6 20 And I'm starting to hear that there are so many 201448 20 Q So what I'm trying to say is, it sounds like
aizor 21  different iterations and legal documents, so thank soa51 21 we might have smaller homes in the neighborhood, but
anizos 22 you for sharing that, because I think we were all a4 22 they are going to be selling well over what people
201zos 23 under the assumption that there were certain 2ia08 23 are getting for their homes right now? Even a ranch
2zos 24  requirements based on how the community was built 21501 24  home could go for more than a 4,000 square foot home
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MR. TISCI: These are side loads.

ws0e 1 went in the last year. Okay. Thank you. e 1
201528 2 Q Mike Grober. I think one of the issues or awigos 2 Q These front loads also are across the street
w528 3 comments that I would like to make is, a lot of the w111 3 from the golf villas as well. So the continuity
mis3 4 executive lots, 13 of the executive lots, I believe aezr &4 there --
a53s 5 also had that three-car side-load requirement, so s1azr 5 MR. BRANKIN: We have a court reporter and people
wsse §  that tended to be a larger home. zaezs B chiming in the back, so one at a time please.
541 7 I have lived at 9 Somerset and that was in w0855 ¢ A Some of those executivas was allowed to have
asas 8 that cul-de-sac where there is one remaining lot and xss 8 a three-car upgrade, If I remember correctly, through
n540 9 all of the properties along there al had three-car w41 9 that, so that is where the executive came in where
=52 10 side-load garages, so if we are going to put in -- 201041 10 the golf villas may not have.
a1565 11 and you start looking at all the properties, between zonms2 11 MR. VOLTATORI: There is no three-car garage.
siese 12 executive and the larger lots that they're deemed, wies4 12 They are not wide enough.
aimes 13 that's about 80 percent of the lots and there is only mese 13 Q On the executive?
weos $4 3 or 4 plans that offer that side-load to make up 201ese 14 MR. VOLTATORI: On the executive, yes. The lots
201611 15 80 percent of the rest of the community. That is one x1em 15 were only 90 feet wide. There was no option for a
ais14 18 of the concerns, I think those executive lots. If 201004 16 third-car garage per the village. It wasn't per
ate1e 17 you look a those built on the south side, the 201906 17 Toll. The village wouldn't allow it. They are
sote20 18 individual ones, those all have three-car side-load 21012 18 smaller lots. They are only 90 feet wide. Look at
nie2s 19 whereas the -- I think golf villas are the ones that x5 19 the orange lots that are there, as executive, the
wnezn 20  have two-car front loads. a2 20 majority, those are a little wider lots, just to
0 21 MR. MERKEL: When you say the south side, go back | zs2s 21  clarify.
mws 22 to that plan view again. 201878 22 Q No, that's great. We are going to put a lot
wmr 23 Q It's where the majority of homes they are e 28 of executive homes in here. If there are only a few
201540 24  going to build are. 21990 24 options, depending on the rules within the
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ameaz MR. MERKEL: Below you there? 2035 1 Association in terms of the three-car side-load,
015ae 2 Q Yes. So, this section below where all the a0 2 whatever it is, I don't know if that was a
s4e 3 yellow and the golf villas are. mwsz 3 restriction previously on the executive lots or all
201666 4 MR. MERKEL: Those have the front -- 21945 4 of them, but certainly based on square footage of the
201657 5 Q And all these executive homes have the iees 5 lots.
o700 B three-side load and this section in here was that, 201960 O MR. HEINEN: I don't think -- I don't think Tell
nares 7 you know, that executive phase as well, and those all zes2 1 had side-load requirements. I think that was the
xar10 B have three-car side. So, if we are looking at plans mwss 8 elevations that they were doing. They weren't
a1r14 3 comparable to the number of homes they are going to e 9 required to do side-loads on any of the lots. Toll
20177 10 build, there may be a concern there is not enough zze 10 choose to do that.
amar20 11 models to fill all of the area that has to be built. 20z 11 Q Bill Talini, 15 Briar Creek Drive. Thisis a
201726 12 MR. MERKEL: Jlust south there, those are all side 2m2¢ 12 quick question for M/L.
2729 13 loads, too? 202026 13 Do you anticipate charging a premium for
201730 14 Q@ These are all side loads. nzo2e 14 homes put on a lot that boarder -- that actually
21732 15 MR. MERKEL: And those straight down all the way nza 18 boarder the golf course?
201793 16 to retention? w203 16 A Yes.
2naras 17 Q Yes. Those are all side loads. These are waze 17 Q You will be charging a premium for those
2070 18 all as well. nz2e 18 homes?
201740 19 MR. MERKEL: Dante? w20a0 19 A Yes.
20:1743 20 MR. TISCI: The main drive are all front loads. w0 20 Q Thank you.
oorras 21 Q Here, yes. But those are the golf villas and o4 21 Q Dennis Pilar, 20 Championship.
orse 22 these are executives? 202050 22 You also, I believe in the Kildare
204750 23 MR. TISCI: From that corner down to here. w2 28  Homes, charged for lots, correct? There is a lot fee
20m0 24 MR. MERKEL: What about these? 202057 24 in addition?
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o068 1 A No. mzsos 1  where we are going to be at any particular corner of
2o05s 2 Q If you were a certain area. You will say w211 2 the year. Again, the focus and attention is on the
mates 3 it's 400 to start, but that 400, it's like 60,000 for 22514 4 south end and again, market-dependent, we burn out of
xzos 4 the lot and 4,000 and then the -- correct? 202519 4 those lots or we find that 80 percent of the people
w2108 D A Yes. You are referencing what the gentiemen 202522 5 walking in want to be on the north end we have to
2220 6 before you. That would be a lot premium. We take azszr 6 change the strategy, but I couldn't give you an Idea.
225 7 the approach with every single subdivision there is a 20253 7 A Thank you.
22 8 good, better, best lot. It's an art form rather than 537 8 MR. HEINEN: Chairman, if I could? I want to add
2wz 9 science. Establish lot premiums when you can or you w2542 9 one other thing on consideration on the ranch. I can
w21 10 can't. =246 10 hear a lot of angst about that.
202140 11 Q Neil, again. Just a quick question. With so 202548 11 If you flip to the package on elevations,
w2152 12 much banter about the ranch home, is there any wzss2 12 just in talking with Greg we stumbled on something.
n21s4 13 potential to maybe go back to the drawing beard and w2sss 13 We are saying that 2025 is the base square footage
0200 14 find one that is larger? x50 14  for that ranch. Right? That can be optioned up to
oz 15 A Sure. If thatis what they desire, from what mzeos 15 2443, But, if you look at all the ranch plans, they
wzzos 16 I'm hearing, sure, we’'ll consider that. The planning 22600 16 assume a second story. Right?
wzzn 17  commission Is golng to make a recommendation and can | 202812 17 So you have -- that space might not be
w2z 18 address the ranch plan. That is not a blg Issue. 202615 18 built out, it might be finished, but if you look at
202222 19 These are three-car minimums, right? I'm 228 18 all of the elevations, there is not a situation where
202245 20 not sure if there was a minimum requirement for Toll. mz:zn 20 there is not a volume to that home that it doesn't
202248 21 I think there was two-car. We have three-car -- 22625 21 include a second story. So there is kind of a -- I
202320 22 MR. MERKEL: I thought you did, but I don't wze2s 22 think the biggest driving concern here is about look
wzaze 23 remember exact exactly. Do any of the two-story n262 23 and feel and how these homes fit within the character
2u2sos 24 configurations have a first-floor master? =moe 24  Of the existing community, I think the interesting
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202525 1 A  Yes. The Essex plan has a first-floor =nz2e 1 thing here, normally when a lot of other builders,
w2z 2 master. Well -- no. The Aberdeen we designed, but wzesz 2 when we build a ranch home, it's a single-story. You
2u2s4z 3 that Is too small for this program so -- w2e47 $  Can add space to the second story, but the roof lines
w2ns & MR. MERKEL: So there is no first-floor master nzeso 4 will change and it's a significant add to add that
aw2zee 5 option that would be in lieu of a ranch? w2« 8 space on the second story.
202350 © A Correct. 202856 B What I'm seeing with the elevations, that
w204 T @ Ilive at 83 Tournament Drive North. Thank waese 4 Second-story space is built in, even at 2225 square
w207 8 you M/I Homes for showing interest in our community, |27« 8 feet. You are not getting, necessarily, the
w210 9 because you are the only builder that has shown mazos 9 appearance of a ranch home, you are getting -- it's
w213 10 interest in our community as Toll Brothers has left wzze 10 more roof line than it is a side front elevation. It
x241¢ 11 us hanging high and dry forever. wzzas 11 doesn't look like a two-story home from the front,
an2a1s 12 My question is, I know that we are trying waris 12 but the roof massing of the house is significantly
22421 13 to limit the mess of when you do come in and start to nzzn 13 larger than what you would typically see in a 2200
a2 14 development the community. I know you are proposing | 2272+ 14 square foot ranch home,
a2 15 to build five lots at a time. I know you can't have aaras 15 MR, MERKEL: Thank you.
naz2 16  a crystal ball, but when you would get to the north 202735 16 But that is not an option on the
nam 17 side, but if I wanted to move into the neighborhood, =mzrse 17 current plans I have. Am I missing something?
2427 18 when might I be able to give an option to go to the 20274 18 MR. BRANKIN: What was the question?
w2441 19  north end to have a bigger lot, if you could 202mar 19 MR, MERKEL: You said that is an option to build
ma44s 20 speculate? Because right now you are doing five lots wmzras 20 out and a planned option, the fireplace, walk-in
wzes0 21  at a time, I'm focusing on the bottom part on the w25 21 shower, and I didn't that one, I thought I was
waass 22 south, but I know you want to try and build it 202756 22  missing something,
wosse 23 Straight up. 202000 23 MR. BRANKIN: There is an option for a
202502 24 A Yeah, I couldn't give you a timeline as to 202600 24 second-story space. I'm not seeing that. I'm not
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maor 1 seeing It here either, but often times there is a xxzn 1 estimating where we need to be.
261 2 number of options that aren't necessarily shown. 205204 2 My guess, when we opening this up and
w2 3 MR. MERKEL: All right. w08 3 given the cost structure we have dealt with in the
wzsn 4 Q 96 Parkway South. Two questions. Could you =mazes 4 last 8 months, we need to probably help mitigate that
=mas 8§  answer, again, where you think the low end of your aazis 6  the best we can. There might be a small increase to
w2 6 price point will be? I know you talked about average mxzie 6 that in the short term holding where we can and we
2241 7 and median. w2 7 can absorb those price increases.
PNETEIN | And secondly, you said that you have oz 8 Someone made the point earlier we are just
wze4s @ successfully built out some of these types of nz2s 9 going to strip product and material off and — we
aze4e 10 communities where you come in after the fact. And I zz2s 10 cannot do that. We can't establish that marketplace,
zas 11 know that you have been completely compliant with =mazzz 11 establish fit and finlshes, the way you build
azess 12 village code. But what additional provisions do you wazze 12 something, and then take away from that. There isn't
w257 13 take as a builder to consider neighborheod safety? 2323 13 anything to take away from. You have contracts in
20200t 14 We have a neighborhood full of kids. What nszez 14 place, natlonal contract for windows on certain
202008 18 provisions do you take regarding just noise, azes 15 levels that have certain upgrades. There is no just
mzens 16 construction tidiness, things of like that? wsze 16 retooling that. We can go back and talk to the
2zm1e 17 A All of those issues you brought up are highly 2261 17 person and say we need better priclng, but in terms
nzz 18 regulated by the village typically when it comes to wazse 18 of product integrity, we don't strip that way in
nmz 19 operating hours. When it comes to construction maze 19 order to meet — we have to then push the pause
wzn 20 safety, I'm not sure off the top of my head if you maser 20 button like every economy or Industry would do if it
nzn 21  are required to fence off each site, how we handie 203311 21 got that bad, but we will not continue to do volume
wzen 22 that, but typically there Is a provision you are -- a3z 22 by stripping away the quality of the home.
nwn 23 we deal with this In every village hand~in-hand. 203320 23 MR. MERKEL: All right. Anyone else?
s 24 Before we even start, we're typically sitting down 20:330¢ 24 Q Back to the ranch house, does this ranch
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mawwe 1 with building commissioner, inspectors, and they are |zwss 1  house that you're proposing have an option for a
mwz 2 walking us through those particular issues with mz4s 2 third bedroom and/or a side-load garage?
mae 3 respect to construction integrity. There is a 203402 3 A No on the side-load. Yes, we can option up
wae 4 requirement for street cleaning on a weekly basls. naees 4 to a third bedroom.
aaz 5 All those things, I'm sure, are on the books and will 208408 5 Q And what square feet?
nwxx 6 be compliant with that. 20041 B A That is what was shown, 2400 square feet,
wmanaz 7 When it comes to overall price 200416 7 2400 and change.
zwme 8 points — I was even going through what I pulled the 203017 8 Q So whether it's 2 or 3 bedroom, it's
msmsz 9 last 12 months. nuz 9 2400 square feet?
20052 10 You're seeing right now today average 05422 10 A It starts at 2225 and goes up to 2400.
2w 11 pricing at around 600 -- just short of $600,000 in 2041 11 Q I hear your answer, but I say to the board
e 12 the communlty. That's 3800 square feet on average. |z 12  that is inadequate, There are people out there like
300 13 I just pulled -- you have a ranch that sold at na4z 13 me and others in here who have ranch houses who would
a1 14 405,000 bucks. That is -- I think someone said 2938 | 2w 14 love a third garage stall, who are not necessarily
zare 18 or 2900 square foot ranch. One sold last year =nassa 18 young, but there are young families looking all the
naz 16 $405,000. Per square foot that is below my cost. 03450 16 time. .
wazs 17 The retail value, that was my below my cost to bulld 209458 17 I live on the intersection of Crystal
nsa 18  a home. It was 136. sz 18  Downs and Tournament South, which is bottem half
20ata4 19 It's important that we look at those and 203s0s 19 where this proposed to put in the marble house, and
zmarw 20 we compare to that you have an average price today | 2911 20 there is practically a constant parade of traffic
s 21  out the door, 600 thousand, we are going to be ASPs, |z 21  going up and down the streets looking for something
=marsr 22 which is average sale price, out the door. Fit and was19 22 to buy. I think we should have more good option for
wa4s 23 finish and premiums that we -- push, 50 -- high 5s, wae2s 23 them to buy and I think a big ranch should be an
unss 24 low 6s all day long. That is current where we are wass 24 option. Thank you,

LITERA REPORTING, INC.

LITERA REPORTING, INC.

17 of 23 sheets

Page 65 to 68 of 90

06/09/2022 09:10:58 AM




89 71

203600 1 MR. MERKEL: Anyone else? No one else? Qkay. ma1s 1 a lite smaller, but that is one of them.
wse0s 2 Thank you. awe 2 The other issue is that we don't have
3 nmwz 3 he-- haven't had anybody here. Okay?

w4 I will look at the planning commissioners. w3025 4 MR. MERKEL: Ne.
o B I'm looking for a motion to close this public hearing a03e27r 5 Q Nobody can predict market conditions. Do the
wae B MR. LINDQUIST: So moved. 02 6 designs match exactly what was built 15 years ago?
203616 T MR. MERKEL: Thank you. Thank you. wsess 4 No. Tastes have change. Iam in agreement with what
oz B MR. TISCI: I'll second. wwmes 8 they have, their designs they are portraying.
200824 9 MR. MERKEL: Will you please take a roll? e 9 MR. MERKEL: Qkay. Any other comments?

10 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Voltatori? 202m57 10 MR. VOLTATORI: No.

1" MR. VOLTATORI: Aye. 20aese 11 MR. TISCI: I don't have any further comments. I

12 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Lindquist? 40z 12 think the proposal is acceptable. I think the

13 MR. LINDQUIST: Aye. 2400s 13 neighborhood would be much better built out. I think

14 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Merkel? wance 14 the market will drive what homes are chosen on those

15 MR. MERKEL: Avye. ame 15 lots. I think we need to give the purchasers some

16 MS. LOBAITO: Mr. Tisci? 20an1s 16 leeway of what they are geing to put in a home and

17 MS. TISCI: Ave. aan2 17 also think about the other side,

18 MS. LOBAITO: Ms, Massel? 20404 18 Yes, a small ranch can end up nextto a
2004 19 MS. MASSEL: Avye. 04028 19 very large home that is currently there, but I'm not
206:4 20 MR. MERKEL: We have formally closed this manaz 20  sure who is going to choose to do that as a
w7 21 portion of the meeting of the public hearing. This a0 21  purchaser, so I'm not as concerned with that
mwas 22 is a fun part. We can now debate, discuss, our wanze 22  happening. Idon't have any positions and I'm
wmas 23 recommendations that we are going to give back to the |22 23 comfortable with the proposals.
nwsz 24 board. T will state it again, we do not make the snanes 24 MR. MERKEL: David?
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nws 1 decisions, we give recommendations for them to 2vane 1 MR. LINDQUIST: I guess I have to say this. I
mus 2 consider. Off the record, wase 2 live in a 2300 square foot ranch. I have four
waras 3 {Discussion had off the record.) a10s 3 bedrooms, two and a half bathrooms, a family room, a
waras & MR. MERKEL: At this point we are looking -- we w4110 4 laundry room, a 27-foot living room, and an L-shaped
warsa B are going to discuss and come up with some 204116 8  dining room that can be expanded into the living room
warss 6 recommendations to the board. I don't know if we w412 8  for large crowds, the kitchen is rather small but so
wars 7 want to make a list of comments and we'll try to put w428 1 is my wife and she enjoys the short travel distances.
0 8 them in some format we can give to the board. 24133 8 We have lived there for over 50 years.
w2 9 Jack, any specific comments? 204130 9 The tendency now is for homes to get
a0am14 10 A I think the ranch home needs to be just --I w142 10 smaller, not bigger. Most people find that those 4
20m21 11 think It needs to be limited. There is a couple lots a4t 11 or 5 or 6,000 square feet homes were a drain on their
a2 12 that I don't think will fit., There is only a couple w4188 12 finances when the market went down on the value of
w2z 13 of those. a4zon 13 them. We came back and started building a little bit
0 14 @ You are saying the ranch would not fit 24207 14 smaller, but now we are starting to creep back up
man 15 because it's too small? w4z 18 again. I would say that a lot of people that have
20335 16 A Yes, and it's not all of them. It's many of a4ze 18 6,000 square foot homes probably haven't been in all
xss 17 the ones that are kind of -- that are penciled in In 24222 17 their rooms, so I think that what they are doing is

w3z 18 between the rest of the existing homes. The ranch Is | n4:2s 18  closer to where the market will be than where the
wseas 19 larger than the intended ranch that Tell could always | x«:» 19  opinions of thase. Because the prices -- the prices
waes 20 come back and build the way -- the way the bi laws | x«% 20 have changed and they have changed dramatically.

wses+ 21 are written right now, so it's a little smaller than 204242 21 Nobody mentioned the fact the interest
s 22 the smallest executive home that is down the street | 2«4 22 rates are going up. We not only have expanded cost
wosos 23  from me, It's close. I mean it's a ranch and the aazs0 23 for building materials and labor, but we also have
s 24  executive home is not, It's a two-story home. It's aazes 24 interest rates going up.
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w4zss MR. MERKEL: Thank you. Audrey? w455 1 the larger end of the elevation size.
204302 2 MS. MASSEL: I have been hearing a lot of waste 2 I don't know how to get around- I heard the
mazs 3 concerns about buying the lots in parcels of five, w4s22 3 comments about the hodgepodge. I am concerned about
24308 4 and that concerns me in having a third builder, x4z 4 that. Idon't know how to solve it. I don't know if
wsxe 5 however, I would like the lots built, It is mees0 B our staff knows how to solve that one. And some
24ze 6 concerning to me out of the 15 years we have lived naese 6  concerns we heard about how it was originally annexed
w42z ¢ here, this is the only builder that has approached wer ¢ and how Toll did it, that is out of our hands. I'm
wax 8 us, so thank you, m4e41 8 not sure we can do anything with that. But I hear
oy 9 Given some of the other feedback, I think n4sas 9 and struggle with how we put it in any kind of
a0 10 we need other option for a larger ranch, given the nsser 10 recornmendation. Talk about that one. Those are my
w435 11 need for ranches. Since you don't offer a two-story xaese 11 main things.
w4z 12 home that does have a first floor master, I think 204701 12 I have some lots I would like to take about,
aazas 13 that would fill that need. Or, offer a two-story 244 13 see if that is an option to propose back to the
asze 14 home that does have a first-level master to satisfy w4708 14 board.
maxn 18 that need. 204708 18 Chris, can we do that in this form? Can we
20:3:64 16 I live in an area where there are estate war1e 16 say these lots we would like to change from executive
w2aes 17 lots. We already have a lots for purchase. My 4714 17 to estate for these reasons and these stipulations as
z24a0a 18  husband and I did an estimate of the smallest sized 204720 18  in our proposal?
204407 19 home, and there are 5,000, 6,000 square foot homes 204720 19 MR. HEINEN: 1 think the lot designations that
a1z 20 next to 3500 square foot homes and it doesn't look =41 20  were recorded on the final plat cannot be changed
a4e 21  that bad. I would prefer to have - since there is a x4 21 unless you want to amend the final plat. Again, I
24422 22 minimum of 3400 square feet, I think that is doable, unare 22 think these are all marketing names --
204227 23 but I will have to say that working frormn home -~ I 20471 23 MR. BRANKIN: I'rn not sure, Chairman, what you
w43 24  work for a tech company, there is a thrust to work in =ar 24 are looking to change. It's the nomenclature or --
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waas 1 & hybrid model, so a lot of people are going to be waras MR. MERKEL: I could care less.
maar 2 working from home more so and then back in the warsr 2 MR. BRANKIN: The lot size —-
wass 3 Office, so I do think there is a need for larger warsz 3 MR. MERKEL: Type of house, size —
wass 4  sized homes, so thank you for adding that 4,000 warse 4 MR. BRANKIN: Lot size is difficult, As counsel
wnus 5  square foot model. Those are all my concerns. wermr 9 indicated, that is the lot size on the plat that had
204458 B MR. MERKEL: Thank you. As usual, I have 24202 6 already been recorded.
24468 7 several. wamos T MR. MERKEL: Can we say that for these specific
2045:00 8 I do think we need -- I would offer a s 8 lots, this house needs to be this size with a
ma4sa 9 chance to caucus. I think there are several lots man 9 side-load garage?
zas08 10 that are just surrounded by homes that are different azr2 10 MR. BRANKIN: You can make recommendations that
x4s11 11 that we need to change the designation. I would xaee 11 certain key lots --
=415 12 recommend changing it from estate -- executive to 208 12 MR. MERKEL: In the past.
w2 13 estate. That is one thing. ey 13 MR. BRANKIN: -- reccmmendations before, and you
204520 14 Two, I think those lots have to be a wsee 14 can designate, you know, what you would like the
wesaz 18 minimurm square footage, which they have some designs, | 242z 18  board to consider as those key lots, but just in
w453 16 The side-load, I would like to talk to the group a2 16 terms of the underlying plats --
w4s2 17 about is the 2-in-1 the same as the side-load. I 204s2 17 MR. MERKEL: I'm with you. I'm with you. I'm
mases 18 would like to debate that. 4e57 18 good with that.
204548 19 I like the idea -- I think another ranch 20284 19 MR. LINDQUIST: I think it's a serious error for
was51 20 plan would be great. I think a plan that has a 24ser 20 not offering a two-story home without a bedroom on
wasse 21 first-floor two-story master would sell very quickly. s 21  the first floor, I think you are losing a fot there,
wasoz 22 The other option, basing all those estate lots and a aan57 22 MR. MERKEL: We can recommend that. We can put
w407 23 couple I would propose and what everybody else says, wem 23 that in our recommendations. Again, just to the
a1 24 it would be nice to have one more elevation that is wazes 24 planning commission, I just do feel that a built-out
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20010 1 community is better than one with a lot of open lots. wszz 1 reviewed.
24 2 It's been along, long, long time. But we have to be 05213 2 MR. MERKEL: Make this quick. We have Jack’s
w4 §  cOgnizant to fill it with the right stuff, =ez1s 3 proposed. We have key lots that we would propose the
24832 & One recommendation from Jack, you m=s2zz1 4 Jot size a minimum square foot house to be on --
nae4 S5 said there are lots that a ranch will not fit in. 205225 D MR. VOLTATORI: Yes, help with some of the
20 B You know those lots? asz 8 concerns that other people made.
20a9a1 7 MR. VOLTATORI: Similar to what you were saying 208230 T MR. MERKEL: And I see some of those -- on mine
w4 8 as far as having a minimum home square footage on a |as2s 8 it would be due to every other house around them in
wwe 9 couple of those lots and they would be -- aszae 9 the street or cul-de-sac is a certain size, I would
zo40:40 10 MR. MERKEL: Which lots? wszes 10 recommend those are key lots, size and side-load
204050 11 MR. VOLTATORI: The executive lots designated now |z 11 garage.
wa9s3 12 and one -- [ don't know the street name. The 26240 12 MR. BRANKIN: As we do this -- I just want to
24050 13 cul-de-sac on the south side. 25261 13 remind everybedy that there is implications to
204050 14 MR. MERKEL: I can't read the names. 2s254 14 everything we do, because we talked about we don't
205007 15 MR. BRANKIN: So that -- we have not showed that |zszse 15 have an obligation to purchase all these lots, we
asuo 16 yet, but it's a different -- it's a site plan with xsz2 16 don't have an obligation to build. When we start
a1 17 some different information on it. So, on there I =mszr 17 creating obligations that on these couple lots you
=se1s 18 believe you have lot numbers and the lot numbers msx1n 18  must a home greater than this size, we run into a
asete 19 correspond to the lots we're purchasing. I will asx 19 very real possibility that we build through the rest
weo2s 20 ask -- I only have one of those, so if you could szt 20 of the community and we have three lots outstanding,
=z 21  circle the lots you are talking about as you are asew 21 at that point in time, our plans are approved, we
;us020 22 doing this, that way Greg and I can grab it and xsan 22 can't sell those lots and somebody -- somebody else
ases 23 understand what is happening. =s2s 23 Is going to have to come back and petition you for a
2n:s038 24 MR. VOLTATORI: All right. ms20 24 change to zoning and the annexation agreement -- and
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o503 1 MR, MERKEL: Do we want to note these? mssm 1 we have been at this 9 months? The process here is
206042 2 MR, YOLTATORI: There are lot numbers on here. I |=zsr 2 very difficult. The documentation here is
25005 3 will circle -- wmszw 3 extraordinary. I have three hearings tonight --
205006 4 MR. MERKEL: Okay. 05345 4 MR. MERKEL: It's difficult because of the way
wseae B MR. VOLTATORI: I will pass it down. 2537 5 it's annexed or because of us?
wseae 6 MR. MERKEL: We are proposing to not put a ranch |z 6 MR. WHITAKER: No, no, no. If's not a shot at
wses4 7 house on a lot that is toc big. wsszs2 ¢ the village at all. I'm saying because of the volume
wses7 8 MR. VOLTATORI: Yes, lot 27, 387, 391. xssse 8 of documentation and how some of it was drafted, 1
susiza 9 MR. BRANKIN: Chris? wosem 9 think -- T want to be very cautious,
205126 10 MR. HEINEN: Can I recommend that we sit with the | zoss00 10 As we impose additional requirement, it
asas 11 applicant as well as the planning commission members, | 252 11 may be that you create a situation where those are
xs3s 12 get a site plan up, and go through these xs5 12 the last lots to develop or those lots don't develop.
wsiee 13 individually, because it's going to be -- 2use1s 13 Keep that in mind as we put additional restrictions.
205140 14 MR. MERKEL: Are we doing that tonight or do that | zs«s 14 I will tell you, the purchase price for these lots is
wst4s 186 off-line? =sa2s 15 significantly less than replacement, We are buying
205145 16 MR. HEINEN: I think we can put in the - =se1 16 these at a discount.
ws146 17 recommendation that a condition that a key lot wsa 17 If Toll could be here and build the houses
wstee 18 exhibit -- ws¢s 18 that they have approved and come even close to a
ss0 19 MR. MERKEL: Let put in the recommendation key |zses 19  profit, if they would break even on those, what was
=sse 20 lot one way I was suggesting, and key lot the other wseas 20 already accrues in the subdivision, they would be
wnsis7 21  way the house is too small for that lot. asess 21 doing it. What they are selling us, these lots for,
w5203 22 MR. HEINEN: And then we can work at the staff us4s0 22 at a loss. Make no mistake about that,
wmsz0e 23 level to figure out which lots are the certain square 205453 23 So, just keep in mind -- you made a
wszon 24 footages that you want and shoot it out and get it nssz 24 comment earlier that these folks are emotional
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assos 1 because they purchased houses and lost a lot of money |zsr=s 1 planning on the fly and setting it up for failure
ns0e 2 and what we are going to do is going to affect them. xsree 2 again, would be for the village board to consider as
2osE1 3 I would respond by saying that the money mses 3 it reviews this the lot sizes and the particular
205614 4 had been lost. One of the other residents very s 4 product that can be put up.
w20 5 wisely said that the real concern here is that you st D MR. MERKEL: You summed it very well, but
mssz2z B have vacant lots and that those vacant lots never get nsee 8 basically -- it's a lot of vagueness.
msszy 7 built on because those vacant lost create 205821 7 MR. BRANKIN: It is. Quite frankly, I think that
mssza @ uncertainty. Buyers don't like uncertainty. nse2s 8 is the hand we are dealt,
sz 9 Finishing these lots is what is going to 2vse2s 9 MR. MERKEL: It is.
wssaz 10 actually help build back value. Seeing smaller 2828 10 MR. BRANKIN: It's not because of the developer
wssas 11 houses purchased at prices that exceed larger =ss=ae 11 or anyone here. It's -- it is what it is. Right?
wssae 12 existing homes is going to help prices of existing =z 12 And so we have a developer that is trying to work
wssas 13 homes. Let's just be careful about saying we need to s 13 with kind of a die that has been cast, and you all
usse 14 make it like what failed, because it's proven to have a2 14 are trying to make the best decision possible for the
wssse 15 failed and it's been 20 years. asa45 18 village in making that recommendation. I think, you
20562 16 MR. MERKEL: I'm not sure we are saying that. nse4s 16 know, based upon what you have, that is about as
assss 17 That is a2 pretty far stretch. We are not saying xsest 17 detailed as you can get.
wnesss 18 build what you have today. z05m68 18 MR. MERKEL: I'm struggling all the ones we have
205600 19 MR. WHITAKER: But we are imposing requirements |zseer 19 done, it seems like it's the most vague to give back
=sem 20  have you to hit a certain size on these various lots, 20se0s 20 to the board.
msaoe 2% that I think is -- that is -- 206006 21 MR. BRANKIN: You have the plans, you have the
mseon 22 MR. MERKEL: I hear you. I know there is an acre wse0e 22 square footages, all of that. Unless you are going
msez 23 lot. If you put this on an acre lot, it's going to w502 23 to pinpoint what particular product be on a
wesis 24 look ridiculous. wses 24 particular lot, but --
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zos1e MR. WHITAKER: Igetit. I heard Mr. Voltatori, wssir MR. MERKEL: You're suggesting we shouldn't do
nszs 2 1totally get where he is coming from. As long —- 1 nsze 2 that, more consider the size of home, the square
nmzr 3 wanted to say this so you were thinking about the w2 3 footage of the lot --
ase2e 4 implication of, as we do this, let's be smart as we wsea 4 MR. BRANKIN: Right. And staff can look at that
a8 doit. I don't think we will have any objection to wsezr B and juxtapose that as the board considers it, but I
2se B what Mr. Voltatori is suggesting. wsem B agree with counsel, you have to be careful about
P T I MR. MERKEL: I hear what you say. Our point is =sem 7 pigeonholing something on a lot that's going to --
w643 8  you heard. We don't know all those ramification. oseam MR. VOLTATORI: Can I say, that was not my
205646 9 The questions you are answering, answered wmszes 9 intention to do that either because -- I don't know
wseso 10 wonderfully, but what is my expectation to sell how =sen 10 the legal ramifications of how things are if we made
=mse6s 11 many, when, how many do you think you will do of the |[zsess 11 a decision like this.
waess 12 105, you don't know. So we are guessing on all these | zsess 12 We are worried about the people that
wszeo 13 things. It's a challenge. xsese 13 do live there, trying to make a good decision for
205700 14 Chris, what do you suggest we do =aeos 14 them as well. But, the way it's set up, M/I doesn't
wszv 15 here? 2ee0 18 build or sell, that Toll Brothers can come back in
205718 16 MR. BRANKIN: So, I will try to fashion the =zace 16 here and do the same, and M/1 brought square footages
wsrt2z 17 motion, because I don't see anybody up here saying no |z 17 that are larger and told to do -- not whatever they
205727 18 in mass. Right? nazn 18  want, but that square footage is allowed by them --
205727 19 So it would be a motion to approve subject zion2s 19 MR. BRANKIN: And less.
w1 20 to the materials submitted by the developer, with the 70028 20 MR. MERKEL: -- that is the confusing part. The

21 additional recommendation of, and one of those is to noe 21  existing square footage that is planned for them is
wo6mes 22 consider a larger ranch product. And, in trying to 2000 22 1700 for a one-story and 2200 for existing. That is
wsrse 23 consider with counsel for the developer said, what nwe 23 on the books today's. That has been approved by the
wnrsz 24 the commissioners have said, but also not kind of z004s 24 village board 15 years age -- our hands are tied.
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200 1 MR. VOLTATORI: M/I's proposal, the smallest is o5z 1 MR. MERKEL: You mean by consideration?

2058 2 22, 25, which is larger. Could we recommend they 205z 2 MR. BRANKIN: Evaluation. If you want to get

20 3 bring in a different ranch? You could recommend a0z 3 into the key lot, I think you are going to run into

210007 4 that. That's actually sales. I actually think it 20540 4 the same issues that we kind of find ourselves in

210 B would be a good recommendation with what was said. I|zsss 8§  right now.

205 6 think a bedroom on the first floor -~ again, that is ato54s B MR. MERKEL: Are you shaking your head?

2are 7 a sales determination, so however you decide to make |z 7 MR. HEINEN: From an enforcement perspective,

20125 8  that decision is up to you. aosen 8  it's a nightmare to have those key lots and, like

2tovz 9 MR. LINDQUIST: People with handicapped children. |asss @ counsel said, pigeonhole the individual lots to

2oz 10 MR. VOLTATORI: Yes, there are a lot of reasons = 10 certain size and types.

ztmae 11 to have it. And that is where Tofl had it in their sz 11 MR. MERKEL: Is there anything we can do -- is

zoe 12 proposal as well as in the other designs, Toll also a2weoe 12 there -- did we mention that phasing in the areas --

2 13 put it in there, amoes 13 I know they said -- put anything in there --

210226 14 MS. MASSEL: Are we making the recommendation to | 21021 14 MR. BRANKIN: Yeah, and we are getting into sort

22z 16 add a larger ranch and then add a first-story master? 210524 18 of contract administration between the buyer and

2z 16 MR. MERKEL: I was just writing up what we zoezr 16 seller and I don't think that is within the purview.

2ozas 17 thought to capture that. I think we will put a 210834 17 MS. MASSEL: Is it too late to say I recommend

21eae 18 proposal together. zizasy 18  removing the urban farmhouse on elevation because it

z1ose 19 Can I ask two easy ones? The nees1 19 just looks too different from what is currently

nezes 20 anti-monotony standard, we had approved that on neas 20  there?

=azes 21  several other subdivisions in the past. Do we have a 210855 21 MR, MERKEL: Which model?

zaxz0: 22 problem updating to this standard? Anyone? 210858 22 MS. MASSEL: All of them.

210308 23 MS. MASSEL: I don't think so. 20701 23 MR. MERKEL: I wonder if we are getting too --

zvosos 24 MR. MERKEL: That one's easy. 2noror 24 MS. MASSEL: Or how about -- are we still going
LITERA REPCRTING, INC. LITERA REPORTING, INC.

86 88
2oxe The architectural overlay, any issue with zwrn 1 to do the requirements for the estate lots, 3400 and
noxw 2 that one? zome 2 3 car garage? For the estate lots.

o 3 MS. MASSEL: Is that the requirement -- 20723 8 MR. MERKEL: 3400 side-load --

zome 4 MR. MERKEL: No, this is the -- this is basically zorzs & MS. MASSEL: Can we just say for the estate lots

222 5 bringing the current ordinance to what it is today. aom 5 remove the urban farmhouse elevation? Only because

2103m 6 Any issues with that one? =ors 6 they look so totally different from anything else

et T MR. MERKEL: Minimum floor requirements, going nor 7 thatis in there.

2oz0 8 higher than platted today, 17 and 22. So the 210024 B MR. BRANKIN: The recommended motion will be

e 9 recommendations that we have. noezs 9 motion to approve with additional recommendations of

210400 10 Patrick is going to give us his areze 10 the larger ranch product, a second-floor two-story

2a B1  thoughts on what we said. 23 11 first-floor master product, consideration of the

210006 12 MR. BRANKIN: The proposed motion would be a 2mem 12 product on each of the lots in consideration, and

210 13 motion to approve -- recommend approval of the relief | 21ee 13 removal of the urban farmhouse elevation from the

a0 14 that is set forth in the application together with z0ms 14 estate lots.

a2z 15 the additional recommendation to the village board 210855 15 MR. VOLTATORI: It doesn't strike me -- I think

210425 16 that an additional larger ranch product be considered 2wess 16 you have to look at the -~ I'm not against it.

20 17 as well as for the village board to consider the 210800 17 MS, MASSEL: It's only on 20 lots.

203 18 product that can be placed on each of the lots, 210007 18 MR. TASCI: I think it's perscnal preference. I

210438 19 MR. MERKEL: Before that, a ranch, I think we aroe0 19 think we need to give the purchaser of the homes the

20 20 also said propose a second -- two-story with a first 2004 20 option, but I wouldn't be against it. I think we are

aoes 21 floor master -- two-story, first-floor master in awwzr 21 delving deep into the business these guys are trying

o0 22 addition, ez 22 1o run and telling them how to run their business, I

20s1z 23 MR. BRANKIN: Consideration of the product to be 22 23 think they do an awful lot of research and are

2os1s 24 placed on each the lots. nosz 24  professionals in home building and know what the
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21054 16 how we manage it?
MR. BRANKIN: I don't think that is within the
aee 18 purview when you are talking about how a buyer and

21:10:68 17

201 19 seller interact. We can regulate certain of that

2t 20 through what the responsibilities are in the

2w 21 annexation agreement amendment, but we can't require
21115 22 the developer to take down a certain number of lots
21m8 23 OF areas.

MR. MERKEL: I tried. So the motion is good?

21119 24

markets want, but I understand your position. We
need to be careful in directing professional home
builders on how to do their business.

MR, BRANKIN: So it doesn't seem like there is a
consensus on that one.

MR. MERKEL: We'll take that up.

MR. BRANKIN: The motion: A motion to approve
and subject to the following conditions,
recommendation: One is larger ranch product, second
zuoe 10 is consideration of a two-story first-floor master
a:wre 11 elevation product, evaluation of the product on each
zti02s 12 of the lots in consideration. That is it.

MR. MERKEL: I'm struggling with the patchwork.
atwss 14 Is there anything we can add in to our
2048 18 recommendations to the board for them to consider it,
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board meeting, it will be noted when the board
meeting to discuss this will be. Motian te close and

adjourn.

a0

MR. BRANKIN: Yes.
MR. VOLTATORI: I made the motion.
MR. TASCI: I second.
MR. MERKEL: We need a roll vote.
MS. LOBAITO: Me., Voltatori.
MR. VOLTATORI: Aye.
ME. LOBAITO: Mr. Lindquist.
MR. LINDQUIST: Aye.
MB. LOBATTO: Mr. Merkel.
MR. MERKEL: Aye.
M3, LCBAITC: Mr, Tisci?
MS5. TISCI: HAye.
M5. LOBAITO: Ms. Massel?
M5. MASSEL: Aye,

MR. MEPKEL: Thank you. If you come to the

MR. VOLTATORI: Second.
MR. MERKEL: Any opposed?
Thank you.

(End of reported proceedings.)
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